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1

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

We can open up with the

2

meeting here at 7:25 p.m. and we'll call the meeting

3

to order.

I'll lead the pledge of allegiance.

4

(Pledge recited.)

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

Now let's read the

compliance with the Sunshine Law.

7

MS. SECAUR:

In accordance with the

8

Public Meetings Act and due to the current state of

9

emergency and/or public health emergency declared by

10

Governor Phil Murphy, and in a effort to prevent

11

further spread of COVID-19, notice of this remote

12

meeting was posted on the borough bulletin board

13

designed for that purpose, mailed to the office

14

newspaper, as provided by borough ordinance, and

15

filed with the Municipal Clerk at least 48 hours

16

prior to this meeting giving the time, date, location

17

and log-in, call-in information for this remote

18

meeting.

19
20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
a roll call now.

So we are going to take

Donna?

21

MS. SECAUR:

Ken James.

22

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

23

MS. SECAUR:

Richard Rivera.

24

MR. RIVERA:

Here.

25

MS. SECAUR:

Richard Dardine.

Here.

5

1

VICE-CHAIRMAN:

2

MS. SECAUR:

3

MS. GUIDA:

4

MS. SECAUR:

Gregory Wright.

5

MR. WRIGHT:

Here.

6

MS. SECAUR:

Mayor LaDaena Thomas.

7

MAYOR THOMAS:

8

MS. SECAUR:

9

MR. GIORDANO:

Melissa Guida.
Here.

Here.
Ron Giordano.

MS. SECAUR:

11

MR. NICOLOSI:

Here.

10

12

Alfred Nicolosi.

MS. SECAUR:

14

MS. JACKSON:

15

MS. SECAUR:

17

Here.

I've recused myself

for this meeting.

13

16

Here.

Jennette Jackson.
Here.
We have our two

professionals, Darryl and Dena.
MR. RHONE:

Since Mr. Giordano is a

18

councilperson and Ms. Thomas is a councilperson,

19

they will not be part of this meeting.

20

our engineer.

21
22
23

I'll swear in

- - DENA MOORE-JOHNSON, having first been
duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

24

- - -

25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

So from the previous

6

1

minutes, month of April 12, 2021, can I have approval

2

of the minutes?

3

MS. GUIDA:

4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

5

MS. DARDINE:

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

7

THE BOARD:

8

We have Mr. John Wiley, the applicant's

9
10
11

attorney.

So moved.
Second.

Second.
All in favor?

Yays.

Do you want to lead us through what you

have done?
MR. WILEY:

Sure.

So, if you recall at

12

the last meeting, I asked that the matter be carried

13

because I wanted to have my client amend his

14

applications.

15

applications for 59 Cumberland Avenue which is for a

16

two-unit multi-family.

17

for a two-unit application.

18

into 146 South Broad Street, 19 Walnut Street, Poplar

19

Street, all the ones that we had previously

20

introduced at the last meeting.

21

In addition to that, we have two new

And for 78 North Broad Street
And then we would go

Now, in terms of format, kind of treat

22

this as a bifurcated hearing so we're going to

23

provide the testimony that we think is necessary to

24

obtain a use variance.

25

variances that are going to be required.

There are a number of bulk
But they're

7

1

all academic if we don't get the use variances.

2

we will subsequently testify as to the site plan.

3

But my suspicion is based on a number of projects

4

here, we're probably just going to be able to get to

5

the use variance tonight.

6

We have three witnesses.

So,

They had

7

appeared prior to this time.

First we will have our

8

site engineer and will testify to each separate

9

property.

And he will provide the new or revised

10

site plans for the projects.

11

Kwak testify to the revised elevations, as well as

12

floor plans for all the new sites.

13

things, we're eliminating the third story on all the

14

applications.

15

for that particular element.

16

We will then have Mr.

Among other

So we no longer need a use variance

And lastly, we will have our planner

17

testify with reference to the rational for the use

18

variances.

Now, his testimony will be broken up into

19

two parts.

The first part will be site specific with

20

reference to the various applications.

21

testifying basically to the present conditions of

22

each property, as well as the surrounding

23

neighborhood for each property.

24

his testimony we'll integrate all the applications

25

because they all have the same planning rational to

And he'll be

But then, the end of

8

1

justify the use variance.

2

I'd like to have Mr. Gaskill sworn in as my first

3

witness.

4

MR. RHONE:

So, without further ado,

I appreciate that Mr. Wiley,

5

And your acknowledgment that if the use variances are

6

granted, that the bulk variances are not going to be

7

subsumed into the grant?

8

MR. WILEY:

Correct.

9

MR. RHONE:

All right.

Thank you.

We

10

can go ahead and swear in all your witnesses now if

11

you'd like just to have it out of the way via Zoom.

12
13

MR. WILEY:

All right.

We have Mr.

Gaskill, Mr. Spatz and Mr. Kwak.

14

MR. RHONE:

Okay.

Just repeat after me.

15

I swear or affirm, whatever you prefer, to tell the

16

truth, the whole truth but nothing but the truth so

17

help me God?

18

- - -

19

COREY GASKILL, P.E.; DAVID SPATZ, P.P.;

20

JOHN KENNY KWAK, having first been duly

21

sworn/affirmed, were examined and testified as

22

follows:

23

- - -

24

MR. WILEY:

Mr. Gaskill, you're on.

25

MR. RHONE:

I'm going to acknowledge your

9

1

witnesses as experts and they were offered before as

2

experts.

3
4

We'll just proceed.
MR. WILEY:

I guess we should start with

the site plan for 59 Cumberland.

5

MR. GASKILL:

Donna, doesn't look like

6

that request for the remote control works.

7

bottom of your screen or right in the middle there

8

should be that share screen.

9

the Zoom window.

10
11

MS. SECAUR:

At the

Do you see it?

It's in

Darryl, do you still have

control?

12

MR. RHONE:

I do.

13

the power to share here.

14

MR. GASKILL:

I'm trying to give him

I think whoever has

15

sharing, needs to just unshare and then it opens it

16

up.

17

MS. DONNA:

I'm going to stop sharing.

18

MR. WILEY:

I can see it.

19

MS. SECAUR:

20

MR. GASKILL:

I can.
Beginning with Mr. Wiley

21

here, right now I have up on screen 59 Cumberland

22

Avenue which is one of the new two-unit buildings.

23
24
25

MR. WILEY:

And this property is

presently a vacant lot; is that correct?
MR. GASKILL:

It is vacant.

There's a

10

1

bit of brush and debris across the rear of the

2

property.

3

Avenue.

4

is an unimproved alley to the side and to the rear of

5

the property.

It's bordered in the front by Cumberland
Curb and sidewalk existing.

6
7

MR. WILEY:

And if you could identify the

proposed improvements on the property?

8
9

And then there

MR. GASKILL:

The proposed improvements,

we're looking to replace the curb and sidewalk across

10

the front.

11

gutter.

12

provided on site with a four-foot walkway back to the

13

building with brick pavers around the building on

14

three sides, and the structure thereon.

Then there will be two parking spaces

15
16

MR. WILEY:
correct one?

17
18

21
22

Are you sure this is the

This indicates three-story and -MR. GASKILL:

The bulk schedule on the

architecturals was updated.

19
20

I believe this one actually has curb and

MR. WILEY:

Okay.

So, how many units is

this?
MR. GASKILL:

This is two units.

Multi-family.

23

MR. WILEY:

And a two-story building?

24

MR. GASKILL:

25

MR. WILEY:

Correct.

And the units are first

11

1

floor, second floor?

2
3

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Is it two-and-a-half

story equaling the 32 feet?

4

MR. GASKILL:

According to the bulk on

5

the architecturals, it's two and a half-story at 32

6

feet.

7

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Each of them, right.

8

Each of them.

9

they're each two-and-a-half equaling 32 feet.

10
11

The site plan will say three-story but

MR. GASKILL:

For 59 Cumberland and 78

North Broad.

12

MR. WILEY:

As far as water and sewer is

13

available in the street?

14

MR. GASKILL:

15

available in the street.

16

connections to water, sewer and gas along all

17

properties.

18

MR. WILEY:

Water and sewer are
We have proposed

Okay.

So, you don't

19

anticipate -- the public right-of-way, it's just

20

going to be really the sidewalk that's going to be

21

reinstalled?

22

MR. GASKILL:

23

MR. WILEY:

Correct.

I have no further questions

24

with reference to the site plan on this property.

25

Does any Board members have any questions?

12

1

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

Yeah.

Any Board

2

members have any questions on this property here?

3

Any Board members?

4

MR. WRIGHT:

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

MR. WRIGHT:

7

feet in terms of what?

8

about?

9
10

MR. WILEY:

I do.
Greg.

Just for clarification, 32
I mean, what are we talking

It's the height of the

structure.

11

MR. GASKILL:

12

MR. WRIGHT:

Correct.
Thirty-two (32) feet is the

13

height of the structure and it's going to be a

14

two-dwelling structure?

15

MR. GASKILL:

16

MR. WILEY:

17

MR. WRIGHT:

18

Correct.

Yes.
That's not very high, is

it?

19

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

In these areas, you

20

can have up to three floors and 39 -- let me look at

21

the requirement.

22
23
24
25

They're all the same.

MR. GASKILL:

Thirty-five (35) foot is

allowed.
MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Right.

(35) foot three-story is allowed.

Thirty-five

Each building no

13

1

matter whether they're two units, four units or eight

2

units. They are all, according to their plan,

3

two-and-a-half stories and 32 feet.

4

MR. WRIGHT:

5

footage?

6
7

So, what is the total square

MR. GASKILL:

Of the building or the

lot?

8

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

9

MR. WRIGHT:

Do you have that?

Of the building.

10

they're two-story multi-unit dwellings.

11

high and what is the square footage?

12

MR. GASKILL:

13
14
15

You said

It's 32 feet

Per dwelling unit on 59

Cumberland is 1,479 feet.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

That's both stories,

first and second?

16

MR. GASKILL:

That's each dwelling unit.

17

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

18

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Each dwelling unit.
And other than the

19

sidewalk for the public, it would be restoration of

20

the utility installation, correct?

21

MR. GASKILL:

22

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

23
24
25

Correct.
Anyone else have any

questions concerning this property?
MR. WILEY:
the next property.

If not, could we could go to

14

1
2

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

It looks like Mr.

Rivera has a question.

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

4

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

5

Chat.

My question:

6

the Cumberland property?

7

MR. GASKILL:

Mr. Rivera, go ahead.
He has it in the

Is there a current sidewalk on

There is a current sidewalk

8

across the front of the property and we are replacing

9

that across the frontage.

10
11

MR. RIVERA:

Thank you.

Can you hear me

now?

12

MR. GASKILL:

13

MR. RIVERA:

Sorry.

14

MR. WRIGHT:

I have one more question, if

15

Yes.

you don't mind.

16

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

17

MR. WRIGHT:

18
19

Thanks.

Go ahead, Greg.

In terms of affordability,

what is the affordability of these dwellings?
MR. WILEY:

Our engineer won't be able to

20

answer that question.

Mr. Kwak, who is the

21

developer, will be the next witness and he should be

22

able to answer the question.

23

MR. WRIGHT:

Thank you.

24

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

25

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

Any other questions?
I just have one.

This

15

1

is Maryanne speaking.

2

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Yes, Maryanne.

3

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

Looking at the lot

4

here and going through -- this is 59 Cumberland

5

Avenue, correct?

6

MR. GASKILL:

Correct.

7

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

When you're talking

8

about parking, off-street parking, are you talking

9

setback from the sidewalk; that parking would be --

10

in other words, no one would be blocking a sidewalk?

11

MR. GASKILL:

Correct.

12

stalls are on the property itself.

13

MR. WILEY:

14

MR. GASKILL:

They are -- give me a

moment here.

17
18

And what are their

dimensions?

15
16

The parking

MR. KWAK:

They're all 1 by 18,

Corey.

19

MR. GASKILL:

Yes.

They meet -- these

20

ones all meet 9 by 18.

21

18.

22

property line.

23

the back of the sidewalk and the brick pavers.

24
25

And there's a -- yes, 9 by

The building itself is set 26 foot from the
We have about 20 to 24 feet between

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
does that accommodate?

Corey, how many cars

16

1

MR. GASKILL:

At the moment this is set

2

for two vehicles on the lot.

3

so that's the space that we had to deal with.

4
5

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

It's a 25-foot wide lot

And how many

apartments are in this particular lot, the building?

6

MR. GASKILL:

Two units.

7

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

No.

8

two cars.

9

to the actual front of the building?

10

MR. GASKILL:

I meant, you have

You have two spaces for cars that pull up

11

front of the building.

12

area?

We have two spaces in the

You see stippling, the dotted

13

MS. BROWN-MACKAY: Yes.

14

MR. GASKILL:

15

Those are the parking

stalls.

16

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

So when you say

17

parking stalls, when they pull in off the street,

18

they're actually pulling right up to the building,

19

the facade of the building?

20

MR. GASKILL:

Correct.

There's a

21

four-foot walk in the front of the building where the

22

cars will be pulling up directly in front of the

23

building.

24
25

MR. KWAK:

Perhaps, Corey, maybe if you

can go to the elevation, the front facade.

17

1
2

MR. WILEY:

John, you're going to testify

to that.

3

MR. KWAK:

4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

5

questions, anybody?

6

Okay.

Okay.

8

Chairman.

9

hand down.

10

Richard, do you have a question?

MR. RIVERA:

It was answered already, Mr.

I apologize.

I don't know how to take the

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
and I'm thinking, oh, man.

Oh, I saw your hand up

MR. RIVERA:

13

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

14

MR. WILEY:

Okay.

12

15

Any other

No other questions.

7

11

Okay.

Thanks Rich.

I found the switch.
There you go.

Sorry.

Thanks.

Corey will testify and will

bring up the 78 North Broad Street proposal.

16

MR. GASKILL:

78 North Broad Street, once

17

again, we're dealing with a vacant property.

The

18

property itself is essentially grass with some brush

19

on it.

20

background interruption.

21

and gutter that is being replaced across the

22

frontage.

23

of the building with a concrete walk from the

24

sidewalk to the building.

25

front and side and the building situated thereon.

It's near the corner of West Church -There is sidewalk and curb

Three spaces are being provided in front

Brick pavers along the

18

1

MR. WILEY:

And this building, again, is

2

two stories with two units, correct?

3

MR. GASKILL:

4

MR. WILEY:

5

That is correct.

This is a vacant lot as

well?

6

MR. GASKILL:

Yes.

7

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

When you're saying two

8

story, two-units, you're talking one unit on the

9

whole first floor and one unit on the whole second

10

floor?

11
12

MR. GASKILL:

That is my understanding.

But Mr. Kwak would have to speak further about that.

13

MS. BROWN-MACKAY: Okay.

14

MR. GASKILL:

And once, again, this a

15

two-and-a-half story, 32 foot tall building and the

16

square footage per dwelling unit on this property is

17

1,441 and change .38 (point 38).

18
19

MR. WILEY:

of the engineer on this parcel?

20
21

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
questions.

22

Okay.

No other

We can move to the next property.
MR. WILEY:

23

amended application.

24

up.

25

Is there any other questions

The next property is an
Corey, if you can bring that

MR. GASKILL:

Four units.

Poplar

19

1

Street.

2

MR. WILEY:

Correct.

We had testimony

3

last time regarding this but we've revised the

4

application.

5

structure; is that correct?

6

Could you -- this is now a two-story

MR. GASKILL:

Poplar Street is now a

7

two-story structure.

8

story is 32 feet.

9

and it has 1,278.58 square feet per unit.

10
11

Once again, two-and-a-half

It is now a four-unit structure

MR. WILEY:

And if we -- this is a vacant

lot as well?

12

MR. GASKILL:

This is a vacant lot.

And

13

once, again, we are installing apron and curb across

14

the frontage and parking.

15

available with walkway to the building.

16

around the sides of the building and the unit they're

17

on.

18
19

MR. WILEY:

Four parking stalls are

And then we have a

significant size rear yard; is that correct?

20

MR. GASKILL:

21

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

22
23
24
25

Pavers

On this lot, yes.
I'm sorry.

I didn't

hear what you said, John.
MR. WILEY:

There's a significant rear

yard that will be open on this site?
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

I see that, yeah.

20

1

And how are the units arranged on this?

2
3

MR. WILEY:

We'll have Mr. Kwak testify

but I believe there's two units on each floor.

4

MR. GASKILL:

Based on the

5

architecturals, it looks to be side-by-side units on

6

each floor.

7
8

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
footage on each unit?

9
10

MR. GASKILL:

13
14
15

For Poplar Street it is

1,278.58 square feet.

11
12

How about the square

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

And each are single

bath?
MR. WILEY:

Well, the floor -- we'll have

Mr. Kwak testify as to the floor plans on these.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

questions; anyone else?

17

MR. WRIGHT:

Okay.

Any other

I have a question maybe

18

next for the next person presenting.

19

rentals or to be bought by potential homeowners?

20

MR. WILEY:

21

MR. WRIGHT:

22

MR. WILEY:

23

MR. WRIGHT:

Are these

They're rentals.
They're rentals?
Correct.
Section 8; low income

24

housing; or what type of property?

25

MR. WILEY:

It will be market value.

21

1

MR. WRIGHT:

2

MR. WILEY:

3

MR. WRIGHT:

4

MR. WILEY: Correct.

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

questions.

7

Pardon me?
Market value.
Market value?

I don't see any other

We can move on.
MR. GASKILL:

The next property is 4

8

Elvin Avenue.

Here we are replacing curb and

9

sidewalk across the frontage.

Providing six parking

10

spaces in front of the building.

11

the front side the building thereon.

12

lot itself has a dilapidated dwelling on it and the

13

dilapidated garage in the rear, along with some

14

ancillary structures like fencing which will

15

ultimately be removed.

16

complex with four units.
MR. WILEY:

18

MR. GASKILL:

MR. WILEY:

Any further questions on this

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

How many parking spots

in the front did you say?

24
25

4 Elvin Avenue, the size of

parcel?

22
23

And then size of the units.

the units are 1,279.11 square feet.

20
21

The existing

And it will be a two-story

17

19

Brick pavers along

MR. GASKILL:
provide six.

This one we're able to

22

1
2

MR. RIVERA:

I have question, Mr.

Chairman.

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

4

MR. RIVERA:

Is that you, Rich?

Yes.

Is this the

5

property that has an existing structure on it

6

already?

7
8

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Yes.

He said -- go

ahead, John.

9

MR. GASKILL:

Correct.

There's an

10

existing frame dwelling and a garage structure on

11

this site to be removed.

12
13

MR. RIVERA:

Is that the one with the

tree growing through the roof?

14

MR. GASKILL:

15

site photos to tell you.

16
17

MR. RIVERA:

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
No other questions.

20
21

That's all right.

Thank

you.

18
19

I would have to look at the

Any other questions?

Go ahead, John.

MR. WILEY:

Yes.

We'll move on to the

next property, Corey.

22

MR. GASKILL:

The next one is 121 Denny

23

Avenue.

This is another vacant lot; however, there

24

are some block foundations in the rear that are being

25

removed and some brush and scattered growth on the

23

1

lot.

Across the front of the lot we will be

2

replacing curb and sidewalk; providing four parking

3

spaces across the frontage; and brick pavers along

4

the front side with the building situated thereon.

5

This is a two -- two-and-a-half story, four-unit

6

building with -- and I don't know if this answers Mr.

7

Rivera's questions -- but these are the dilapidated

8

structures on the lot.

9
10

Oh wait.

MR. RIVERA:
it up on Google.

11

That was previous.

That's all right.

I pulled

I could see it on the map.

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

Corey, I have a

12

question.

Are any of these streets -- looking at the

13

information you provided so far of the lesser number

14

of parking spaces that our code requires, are any of

15

these streets one-way streets where it's going to

16

limit parking?

17

MR. GASKILL:

18

MR. WILEY:

19

Not to my knowledge.

Any other questions, Mr.

Chairman?

20

MR. GASKILL:

For 121 Denny Avenue, the

21

minimum area per dwelling unit is 1,265.21 square

22

feet.

23
24
25

MR. WILEY:

Again, this is four units,

two-and-a-half stories?
MR. GASKILL:

Correct.
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1
2

MR. WILEY:

Is there any questions for

Denny?

3

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

One thing I wanted to

4

note.

5

and all of the roadways are two-way roadways.

6
7
8
9

I looked through each of my review letters

MR. WILEY:

Denny indicates it's 40 feet

wide.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:
is that correct, Corey?

10

MR. GASKILL:

11

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

12
13
14

And this was four units;

Correct.
And how many spaces for

parking out front?
MR. GASKILL:

On this lot we are able to

provide four.

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

MR. WILEY:

17

MR. GASKILL:

Any other questions?

Let's go to the next parcel.
The next parcel is 19

18

Walnut Street.

19

trees and brush in the back.

20

significant size to my knowledge.

There is a rubber

21

shed that is going to be removed.

We are replacing

22

curb and sidewalk across the front.

23

This is another vacant lot with some
Nothing of any

We're able to provide four spaces across

24

the front of this lot.

And that is primarily due to

25

the grades we have to meet and match to it.

The

25

1

dwelling will be surrounded by brick pavers front and

2

side.

3

story dwelling.

4

let me zoom in -- 29.56 feet in the rear for rear

5

yard.

This will be another four-unit two-and-a-half

6
7

MR. WILEY:

10
11
12
13

And what is the width of the

right-of-way at Walnut Street?

8
9

And there will be a halfway of 30 --

MR. GASKILL:

Forty-nine and a half

(49 1/2).
MR. WILEY:

And then what would be the

size of the units?
MR. GASKILL:

On Walnut Street, the size

of the units is 1,393.71 square feet.

14

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

15

MR. GASKILL:

16

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

I'll --

It's 1,393.71 square feet.
I'll correct my

17

review letter for this property.

18

six parking spaces.

19

19 Walnut Street.

20

I still have noted,

So I'll revise that to four for

MR. GASKILL:

We were trying for six but

21

we have to raise the building up enough that we

22

weren't able to fit that many across the frontage.

23
24
25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

So that is four units

with four parking spots; is that correct?
MR. GASKILL:

That is correct.
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1
2

MR. WILEY:
site?

Any other questions on this

I guess we can go to the next parcel.

3

MR. GASKILL:

The next parcel is 146

4

South Broad.

5

and Church Street.

6

and sidewalk across the frontage at the moment on

7

South Broad Street.

8
9

This is at the corner of South Broad
We are proposing to replace curb

With regards to curb and sidewalk on
Church Street, that will be addressed with the

10

engineering comments.

We have four parking spaces

11

provided in front of the building with a walkway

12

between the spaces back to the building with brick

13

pavers around the building.

14

13.21 feet rear yard, side yard depending on how you

15

want to look at it.

16

MR. WILEY:

17

MR. GASKILL:

18

building.

19

1,279.11 square feet:

20
21

And how many units?
This is a four-unit

And the size of each of the units is

MR. WILEY:

Any further questions on this

site plan?

22
23

And about 13.06,

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

No further questions.

Next.

24

MR. WILEY:

Next parcel.

25

MR. GASKILL:

That is the remainder of
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1

the four units.

So now we are on to the eight-unit

2

parcels.

3

which is at the corner of Lanning and Poplar on the

4

southeast corner of Lanning and Poplar.

5

replacing curb and sidewalk on the Lanning frontage.

6

And we are providing sidewalk across the

The first of those is 101 Lanning Avenue

We are

7

Poplar Street frontage.

There is no existing curbing

8

along that frontage past the curb return.

9

building itself as opposed to the other dwellings

The

10

we've shown so far, the entrances are on the Poplar

11

Street side, whereas the parking is provided across

12

the Lanning Avenue side.

13

provided.

14

that.

There are eight stalls

There's a typo there.

Don't look at

15

Across the Lanning Avenue frontage, there

16

is an existing dwelling and an asphalt driveway which

17

are to be removed.

18

three sides of the building, though, I believe based

19

on conversation, we're going to switch one of the

20

rear sides to be between the parking stalls and the

21

building.

22

around the perimeter of the building which is to be

23

removed -- around the perimeter of the lot.

24

for this building -- this is an eight-unit building

25

with units to be provided of 1,464.92 square feet.

And we're providing pavers across

There is also a block wall across --

The size
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1
2

MR. WILEY:
of this site plan.

3
4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
anybody?

Any further questions,

Okay John.

5
6

I have no further questions

MR. WILEY:

Okay.

Let's move to the next

parcel.

7

MR. GASKILL:

The next parcel is 58 East

8

Pitman.

This property is once, again, vacant.

We

9

are replacing curb and sidewalk across East Pitman

10

Street, providing eight parking stalls with a walkway

11

down the center of the parking with brick pavers

12

around the building.

And this is going to be another

13

eight-unit dwelling.

And the size for this building

14

will be 1,126.36 square feet per unit.

15
16

MR. WILEY:

Is there any further

questions on this site plan?

17

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

There was also a

18

change in the parking for this one, correct?

19

went from nine spaces to eight?

20

MR. GASKILL:

21

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

22

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

23

Correct.
Okay.

The units on this was

eight units?

24

MR. GASKILL:

25

MR. WILEY:

You

Correct.

Correct.
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1
2

MR. RIVERA:

cemetery, the lot by the cemetery?

3
4

Is this the one by the

MR. GASKILL:

Yes, this is across the

street from the cemetery.

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

MR. WILEY:

7

MR. GASKILL:

Anyone else?

Let's go to the next one.
All right.

8

property is 122 Denny Avenue.

9

vacant lot.

The next

This is another

It consists of two existing lots, Lot 25

10

and 26 which are going to be combined together into

11

one property.

12

corner to be relocated and a handful of trees on

13

site.

14

frontage providing 11 stalls for parking and with a

15

walkway to the building with brick pavers around the

16

sides and front.

17

There is a wood frame shed at the rear

We are replacing curb and sidewalk across the

MR. WILEY:

This, again, is

18

two-and-a-half stories.

How many -- what's the

19

square footage of the units?

20

MR. GASKILL:

21

two-and-a-half stories, eight units.

22

will have 1,375.99 square feet.

23
24
25

MR. WILEY:

Like you said, it's
And each unit

I have no further questions

on this site plan.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Anyone?

Looks like no

30

1

further questions.

2
3

MR. WILEY:

Then we'll go to 101 Lanning

Avenue.

4

MR. GASKILL:

5

MR. WILEY:

6

MR. GASKILL: 49 & 53 Cumberland.

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

8

We did that.

Excuse me.

Just so you know, it's

Lanning Avenue.

9
10

I believe we --

MR. WILEY:

Okay.

I'm proving I'm a

foreigner.

11

MR. GASKILL:

All right.

49 & 53

12

Cumberland Avenue.

13

existing dilapidated frame structure and garage with

14

some concrete aprons and an earth driveway, as well

15

as a little frame shed in the rear corner that are to

16

be removed.

17

This property, there is an

We're replacing curb and sidewalk across

18

the frontage of the property and providing eight

19

parking stalls across the frontage.

20

along the front and sides.

21

alley behind the building, which I believe in this

22

case and I'll have to take a look at the aerials or

23

the site drawings, but I don't believe this was

24

approved either.

25

Brick pavers

And there is a ten-foot

Now, for this property once, again, it's
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1

an eight-unit property.

2

dwelling is 1,104.40 square feet.

3

aerials, I don't believe it's an approved alley way.

4
5

MR. WILEY:

And the unit size per

Is there any further

questions on this site plan?

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

7

MR. WILEY:

8

engineer?

Mr. Chair?
Okay.

Any further questions of our

If not, we'll go to the next site.

9

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

10

questions for the engineer?

11

questions, John.

12
13

Looking the

MR. WILEY:

Anyone got any further
Looks like no further

All right.

This is our last

one.

14

MR. GASKILL:

Yes, sir.

This is also,

15

again, this is Cumberland Avenue at the intersection

16

of Lincoln Avenue on the easterly corner.

17

know of an available street address, but it's Block

18

74, Lot 1.

19

across the frontage on Cumberland Avenue.

20

curbing along Lincoln, we'll deal with as part of the

21

engineering responses.

22

time.

23

I do not

Here we are replacing curb and sidewalk
And

We have none proposed at this

This lot is also vacant. There's some

24

shrub brush along the rear of the lot which will be

25

cleared out.

We're proposing 12 stalls across the
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1

frontage with brick pavers across the sides and front

2

of the building.

3

a maximum -- I'm sorry -- minimum area per dwelling

4

unit of 1,347.84 square feet.

5
6

This is an eight-unit dwelling with

MR. WILEY:

And what was the width of the

street of right-of-way?

7

MR. GASKILL:

The width of the

8

right-of-way is 40 foot on Cumberland and 45 foot on

9

Lincoln.

10

MR. WILEY:

I have no further questions

11

regarding the site plan on this parcel.

12

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

13

MS. BROWN-MACKCAY:

Anyone else?
I have a general

14

question over all the site plans that we have just

15

been presented.

16

consistent with all these plans, is that between the

17

buildings and the brick pavers, it encompasses --

18

they each encompass practically the entire property

19

from end-to-end.

20

And the one thing that I see that is

So my question is, as far as impacting

21

neighbors and the street, what is the water run-off,

22

storm, sewer?

23

each of these lots for a heavy rain to percolate?

24

what is the plan for water run-off?

25

Where is the -- there's nothing on

MR. GASKILL:

Well, each of these lots

So
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1

we're dealing with -- each of these lots is, I have

2

to check every single one but they are all, I

3

believe, around a quarter acre or smaller in size.

4

The run-off on the roof is being directed to the

5

front of the buildings which then it will go out to

6

the street.

7

And the buildings are primarily designed

8

to break either at the front or halfway or in the

9

mid-point to allow run-off to go to the front of the

10

street, to the front of the property towards the

11

street.

12

graded to the front of the streets.

13

they do tend to split down the sides where possible.

There are one or two where the entire lot is

14

MR. WILEY:

The corner lots

And, again, we're going to

15

revisit this when we get to -- if we get to the site

16

plan stage.

17
18
19

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Any other questions?

Okay, John.
MR. WILEY:

Next I'd like to bring up Mr.

20

Kwak although Corey, again, has gladly volunteered to

21

assist us in projecting some of these elevations and

22

floor plans for it.

23

same order that Corey had made his original

24

presentations of site plans to make things, I think,

25

easier for everybody.

So, we're going to go in the

So, we would go, I guess, back

34

1

to Cumberland to start.

2

MR. KWAK:

3

MR. WILEY:

Mr. Kawk, are you there?

Yes.
Okay.

If Corey could bring

4

up, I guess, first the elevations and then we'll do

5

the floor plan.

6

basically four elevations that were submitted in the

7

development package.

8

a two-story with a decorative feature, I guess, to

9

the right-hand side as you face the building; is that

10

So this is the first.

There are

This, as Mr. Kawk indicates, is

correct?

11

MR. KWAK:

12

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
And what is the function of

13

that slightly higher post other than architectural

14

amenity?

15
16

MR. KWAK:

It is an architectural

amenity.

17

MR. WILEY:

Yes.

There's no practical

18

function of it.

If you could see the next elevation,

19

you can see there's nothing behind that.

20

MR. KWAK:

21

MR. WILEY:

22

Just to give some variety to

the building so that it won't look like a box.

23

MR. KWAK:

24

Okay.

25

Correct.

floor plan.

Right.

So let's then scroll down to the

This is the two-family.

Am I correct
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1

there's one unit on each floor?

2

going to work?

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. WILEY:

5

Correct.
And if you could describe

first how many baths are there?

6

MR. KWAK:

7

MR. WILEY:

8

Is that how it's

Yes.

It's two baths.

And they're side-by-side to

each other?

9

MR. KWAK:

10

Yes.

MR. WILEY:

And the front of the unit has

11

the, it looks like a stairwell which goes to the

12

second floor I imagine?

13

MR. KWAK:

14

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
And that's the basic what we

15

literally, classically call the living room; is that

16

right?

17

MR. KWAK:

Correct.

As you enter, you'll

18

have a kitchen.

Then when you go to the rear of the

19

building, you have a dining room area.

20

a living room.

21

bedroom, then two bathrooms then the bedroom in the

22

rear.

Then you have

Then you have a corridor accessing a

23

MR. WILEY:

24

MR. KWAK:

25

MR. WILEY:

So, there's three bedrooms?
Correct.
And the bedrooms have a
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1

slight cross-hatch on them that indicates that they

2

are the bedrooms, right?

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
And the bedrooms have

5

walk-in -- two of them have walk-in closets; is that

6

right?

7
8

MR. KWAK:
closets.

9

MR. WILEY:

10
11

I see.

All right.

bedrooms?
MR. KWAK:

13

MR. WILEY:

Yes.

Correct.

And the second story unit has

the same floor plan; is that correct?

15

MR. KWAK:

16

MR. WILEY:

17

Okay.

And they're connected by a hallway to the

12

14

All three of them have walk-in

Correct.
So, I have no further

questions of Mr. Kwak with reference to Cumberland.

18

Mr. Chair, does anyone have any questions

19

of Mr. Kwak regarding the elevations or the floor

20

plan?

21
22

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
any of the Board members?

23
24
25

Any other questions from

MR. WILEY:

If not, we'll go to the next

parcel.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay, John.
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1
2

MR. WILEY:
you.

Corey we're depending on

And this is North Broad, correct?

3

MR. GASKILL:

4

MR. WILEY:

5

So, North Broad, Mr. Kwak,

has a similar facade to Cumberland; is that correct?

6

MR. KWAK:

7

MR. WILEY:

8

Yes.

Correct.
And in floor plan, is there

any changes to the floor plan?

9

MR. KWAK:

No.

It's almost the same

10

configuration as the Cumberland with one exception,

11

is that we're providing three parking stalls instead

12

of two.

13

MR. WILEY:

14

MR. KWAK:

Right.
But it's the same

15

configuration, kitchen as you enter, dining room

16

area.

17

living room, bedroom, two bathrooms, and two bedrooms

18

in the rear with three walk-in closets.

19

almost the same on the second floor.

20

As you go from front to back, then you have a

MR. WILEY:

All right.

And that's

Any questions

21

with reference to this floor plan or elevations?

22

not, let's go to the next parcel.

23
24
25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

If

You're moving us along,

John.
MR. WILEY:

Trying to.

Poplar Street is
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1

our next one.

Poplar is the four-unit; is that

2

correct, Mr. Kwak?

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
This shows two parking spaces

5

but actually there are four, I believe, on Poplar

6

Street.

Am I correct?

7

MR. KWAK:

8

MR. WILEY:

9

MR. KWAK:

10

Four is on Poplar?
Yes.

Four spaces.

You only

see two cars.

11
12

Right.

MR. WILEY:

But there's four spaces,

correct?

13

MR. KWAK:

14

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
Okay.

So let's then go to

15

the -- so that's the elevations.

16

floor plan on Poplar.

17

units per floor; is that correct?

18

MR. KWAK:

19

MR. WILEY:

Let's go to the

Now, Poplar will have two

Yes, sir.
And are the units different

20

depending on which side of the building they are on

21

or are they the same?

22

MR. KWAK:

No.

23

same.

24

there's a kitchen and --

25

They're pretty much the

It's only left or right unit.

MR. WILEY:

You walk in,

Is there a separate door to
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1

each unit?

2

MR. KWAK:

3

MR. WILEY:

4

7

Are there separate doors for

each unit or is that --

5
6

I'm sorry?

MR. KWAK:

Absolutely.

Absolutely.

Hum-hum.
MR. WILEY:

So, you can go upstairs by

8

taking one set of doors or you can go into the unit

9

on the first floor in a door or to the other unit by

10

a separate door; is that right?

11

MR. KWAK:

12

MR. WILEY:

13
14

Correct.
Okay.

And, again, this

configuration, how many bathrooms does it have?
MR. KWAK:

It has two bathrooms, two

15

bedrooms, kitchen with an island, dining room, living

16

room area and walk-in closets.

17
18

MR. WILEY:

All right.

all four units are the same configuration?

19

MR. KWAK:

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21

second, please.

Correct.
John, hold up one

Rich, is your hand up?

22

MR. RIVERA:

23

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

24

MR. RIVERA:

25

And essentially,

Rich.

Can you hear me?
Yes, I can hear you.

Regarding elevation, is this

the corner lot with the retaining wall, this
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1

property?

2

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

3

MR. WILEY:

4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

5

John.

This is not a corner unit.
No, this unit isn't.

Do

you have a question on a different unit?

6

MR. RIVERA:

It might have been Lanning.

7

I might be getting it mixed up with Lanning that has

8

a retaining wall.

9

MR. WILEY:

I think it's an eight-unit

10

that has the retaining or the wall.

11

MR. RIVERA:

12

I'll wait for that one to

come up then.

13

MR. WILEY:

14

MR. RIVERA:

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

Okay.
Thank you.

this, again, John?

17

MR. WILEY:

18

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

19

22

Four.

Two on each floor.

Okay.

Right.

Any other

questions?

20
21

So how many units is

MR. WILEY:

Let's move to the next

MR. WILEY:

This is on Elvin Avenue.

property.

23

This also is a four-family and this shows a doorway

24

in the front, correct?

25

MR. KWAK:

Yes.
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1
2

MR. WILEY:

Right.

And we have, again,

four parking spaces on this one?

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. WILEY:

5

MR. GASKILL:

6

MR. WILEY:

7

spaces.

8

correct?

9

Are you sure?
On Elvin we have six.

So we have six parking

Again, two units on each floor; is that

MR. KWAK:

10

I guess we have six.

Correct.

MR. WILEY:

Is there any change to the

11

floor plan on Elvin as opposed to the previous

12

street, Poplar?

13

MR. KWAK:

No.

14

MR. WILEY:

Okay.

15

next property.

16

four units, correct?

This is Denny Avenue which is also

17

MR. KWAK:

18

MR. WILEY:

19

spaces on that.

20

correct?

Let's move on to the

Correct.
And there's four parking

The parking is in the front; is that

21

MR. KWAK:

22

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
The doorway is located in the

23

same area at the front.

And the floor plan is the

24

same as in the other four-unit building; is that

25

correct?
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1

MR. KWAK:

2

MR. WILEY:

3

Yes.
The floor plan is the same,

correct?

4

MR. KWAK:

5

MR. WILEY:

6

regarding this unit?

7

parcel.

8
9

Right.
Mr. Chairman, any questions
If not, we will go to the next

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Yes, I do have a

question for Mr. Kwak, though.

10

MR. KWAK:

Yes.

11

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Mr. Kwak, we'll say when

12

you have four units, how many -- so that's four

13

families.

14

MR. KWAK:

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

Correct.
How many people do you

think drive?

17

MR. KAWK:

Well, it all depends.

I think

18

that -- well, Penns Grove requires 1.25 spaces per

19

one dwelling unit.

20

we're only short by one space.

21

that a lot of people these days, they take mass

22

transit.

23

of transportation.

24

ample spaces at this time on the street itself.

25

I've known many multiple dwellings where there's only

And we're providing four.

So

But, however, I think

And we had this discussion before in terms
But, I believe that there is
And
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1

one car per family or per dwelling unit.

2
3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

John.

Thank you,

Mr. Kwak.

4

MR. WILEY:

Let's go to the next parcel.

5

MR. WRIGHT:

I do have a question.

In

6

terms of zoning and when all these plans were put in

7

place to develop these properties, in terms of zoning

8

issues and rules and regulations that our

9

municipality must follow, in terms of zoning, weren't

10

all those things drawn out when you made these plans,

11

how many cars, you know, in a multi-family dwelling,

12

specific requirements regulating lot and building

13

sizes, was all those things were taken into

14

consideration?

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

MR. KWAK:

Mr. Kwak?

Is that directed to me?

Yes.

17

If you look at the title page of each of the plans,

18

it has a box schedule.

19

the current floating ordinance has a requirement.

20

So, the box schedule as per

MR. WRIGHT:

I'm just -- I mean, there's

21

a lot of questions that -- not a lot but there's

22

questions that have been asked that I would think,

23

and I'm guilty of this also, that should have known

24

the zoning requirements.

25

Were these --

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

For clarification,
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1

for residential units, it's basically the Residential

2

Site Improvement Standards.

3

borough would permit on their plans but it's also --

4

the project is regulated in the State of New Jersey

5

by the Residential Site Improvement Standards.

6

MR. WILEY:

It's noted what the

We'll need a De Minimus

7

Exception if the use variances are granted.

8

we're going based on the zoning requirements,

9

although I recognize the RSIS standards are higher

10

But

than your Code.

11

MR. WRIGHT:

So, the municipality of

12

Penns Grove is in line with the -- the Zoning Board

13

is in accordance with the requirements, I guess I

14

could say New Jersey Municipal Law Land Use?

15

MR. WILEY:

Well, there's something

16

called the Residential Site Improvement Standard and

17

that's basically a recommendation throughout the

18

State of New Jersey whether you're in an urban,

19

rural.

20

number of bedrooms -- actually, number of bedrooms

21

per residence dictates the number of units.

22

It's based on the number of units and the

And generally speaking, looking at your

23

Zoning Code which, I think, precedes the RSIS

24

standards, they are higher standards than you have in

25

your own present code.

Now, I don't know if your
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1

present code -- I mean, many municipalities

2

adhere to their present code, you know, don't follow

3

their recommendation of the state because they know

4

local conditions.

5

And, I mean, I've had some municipalities

6

that have a downtown zone, as an example, and they

7

will say, well, one-half of a parking requirement

8

that's required in that zone will have to be adhered

9

to, which is far less than RSIS standards.

But the

10

municipality has done a lot of studies and they say,

11

look, this is what our actual conditions are and

12

we're willing to live with that and then they pass a

13

De Minimus Exception.

14

Some municipalities have standards that

15

are in excess of the RSIS standards.

In that case, a

16

developer could argue to say, hey, you're above the

17

RSIS standards.

18

were imposed, was that it was a belief that some

19

municipalities to zone-out people, etc., had adopted

20

these requirements that were excessive.

And the reason the RSIS standards

21

So generally speaking, if your code is in

22

excess of the RSIS standards, you're probably in some

23

legal jeopardy.

24

below the standards of the RSIS and you're granted a

25

De Minimus Exception and you state why on the record,

If it's -- if your standards are
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1

then generally speaking, that would be upheld.

2

I don't know if your counsel would agree with my

3

interpretation, but that's how I think the RSIS plays

4

between zoning codes and a standard land use

5

application.

6

MR. WRIGHT:

What I'm looking at, most of

7

the dwellings, most of these are multi-family

8

dwellings and most of the time and in most cases, you

9

have two cas.

10

MR. WILEY:

Well, I think you know on

11

some properties we have almost two cars per unit.

12

And others we have one-to-one.

13

dependent on the width of the lot quite frankly is

14

what dictated the amount of parking we could put on

15

the parcel.

16

more parking.

17

little as two because they're only 50 feet wide.

18

Others are as large as eight.

19

on -- one fact, I think, we had 11.

20

on the width of the lot.

21

how much parking we could put on the parcel.

22

Just largely

And those that had wider frontages, got
So, that's why you'll see some as

MR. WRIGHT:

So, it really depends
So, it depends

It really kind of dictated

I do have one more question.

23

I ask this earlier.

In terms of affordable housing,

24

we know in the community of Penns Grove, there's a --

25

you know, I'm concerned about the residents being
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1

able to afford the homes that you're projecting to

2

build.

3

housing.

That's what I'm concerned about, affordable

4

MR. WILEY:

Well, we weren't proposing

5

any covenants.

6

restrictive covenants which, you know, limit certain

7

amount of units have to be low and a certain amount

8

of units have to be moderate income.

9

situations, there's about 15 percent set aside but no

10

There are, as you may know, sometimes

Often in rental

one has really discussed that with us.

11

MR. WRIGHT:

So these real estates that

12

you're proposing to build, who are they being built

13

for, more higher income, moderate income or low

14

income of residents?

15
16

MR. WILEY:

Well, Mr. Kwak, I think that

question is directed to you.

17

MR. KWAK:

I think it would be moderate

18

income.

19

here; very good housing stock.

20

size of the units for a two-bedroom, it's 1,300

21

square feet.

22

would typically see on a two bedroom.

23

I'm trying to build a very good product
If you look at the

It's not a cramped sardine box that you

We also took into consideration what the

24

typical requirements are and that's why I provided

25

walk-in closets, washer and dryer hook-up areas.

A
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1

very open space for a kitchen with a beautiful island

2

and a dining area, living room.

3

moderate housing in the area, I think it would be a

4

very beautiful asset to Penns Grove.

5

the facade, if you look at --

6

MR. WRIGHT:

You know, I think

If you look at

Yeah, it would be a

7

beautiful asset to Penns Grove.

8

people that can't afford these homes.

9

not against improvement or making life -- people's --

10

residents' conditions better; people living in better

11

conditions.

12

to be driving out people that really can't afford

13

these homes.

14
15

But there's a lot of
Listen, I'm

But from what I see here, you're going

MR. KWAK:

I don't think we will be

driving out anyone.

16

MR. WRIGHT:

17

MR. KWAK:

Most of the people --

I mean, you're looking at a

18

two-bedroom apartment probably somewhere between

19

$1,600.

20

even in Salem County, you're probably going to be

21

paying something close to that.

22

And I think that presently wherever you go

I was hoping to revitalize the housing

23

stock and saying, hey, instead of living in a 850

24

square feet, you know, 40-year old building that has

25

a lot of issues, why not come and move to my building
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1

which has 1,300 square feet, walk-in closets, granite

2

countertops, stainless appliances, beautiful

3

lighting, high ceilings, 9 foot.

4

my moderate housing is going to drive out anyone in

5

my opinion.

6

MR. WILEY:

I don't think that

Just to be clear, these lots

7

I think with one exception and that basically is a

8

house that's uninhabitable.

9

we're taking down depriving anybody of existing

10

housing.

11

correct, Mr. Kwak?

There's no units that

These are all vacant lots.

12

MR. KWAK:

Is that

There are only three

13

properties out of the total application have

14

buildings on them.

15

They've been vacant for many, many, many years.

16

we're not getting rid of existing housing stock per

17

se.

18

properties.

19

and they're dilapidated.

But they have been vacant for so long

MR. WILEY:

So, John, no one is going to

get displaced by this housing?

22

MR. KWAK:

23

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

24
25

But

Only three buildings that are on three separate

20
21

And they're all dilapidated.

questions?

Not at all, sir.
Anyone else?

Any other

We can move on, John.
MR. WILEY:

All right.

Let's move on to
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1

the next property, Corey.

2
3

I believe we were at Walnut

MR. DARDINE:

Excuse me.

Street.

4
5

MR. GASKILL:

Richard Rivera

has a question.

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

7

ahead.

8

ahead, Rich.

I'm sorry, Rich.

That hand is hard to see sometimes.

9

Rich, I don't hear you.
MR. RIVERA:

Go
Go

Rich.

How about now?

10

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

11

MR. RIVERA:

Yes.

Okay.

I had a question.

Sorry about that,

12

folks.

Applicant's counsel had

13

alluded to our zoning ordinance preceding the RSA.

14

MR. WILEY:

RSIS.

15

MR. RIVERA:

16

Does that mean that our code is old and

Yes.

17

hasn't been revised?

18

counsel could chime in on that.

Sorry.

Thank you.

If either our engineer or our

19

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

No.

It just --

20

MR. RIVERA:

21

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

22

means, the RSIS came in at a certain time.

23

know.

24

your code is fine for anything other than

25

residential.

Preceding -I'm sorry.

It's just
I don't

It's probably been 20 years now possibly.

And

And across the board, New Jersey just
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1

set up these guidelines for residential housing.

2

as the applicant's counsel said, it doesn't matter

3

where you're located in the state.

4

minimum requirements they would like to see.

5

And

These are the

And so, some townships can have a higher

6

requirement in which, as the counsel said, an

7

applicant can argue on that.

8

requirement, we would use the RSIS as the minimum.

9

And that's just for parking in this instance because

Or as yours has less

10

this is more redevelopment.

11

roads.

12

But there are minimum requirements that's across the

13

board in the State of New Jersey known as the

14

Residential Site Improvement Standards.

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

16

Okay.

You're not creating new

You're not creating new curb or sidewalk.

He shook his head.

Okay Rich?
I didn't hear him.

17

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

18

MR. WILEY:

19

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

20

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

21

MR. WILEY:

22
23
24
25

All right, John.

Okay.

The next parcel.

Thank you, Dena.
You're welcome.

Walnut Street was the last

one we had.
MR. GASKILL:

I believe we had just

gotten to Walnut, 19 Walnut.
MR. WILEY:

Okay.

Mr. Kwak, 19 Walnut
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1

Street is the same as the other four-unit buildings;

2

is that correct?

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. WILEY:

5

MR. KWAK:

7

MR. WILEY:

11
12

Yes, it's similar.
Let's move on to the next

parcel.

9
10

And the floor plan is the

same?

6

8

Yes, sir.

MR. GASKILL:

That takes us to 146 South

Broad.
MR. WILEY:

That is also a four-unit with

four parking spaces, Mr. Kwak?

13

MR. KWAK:

14

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
Again, it's the same

15

configuration as Poplar and the other four-unit

16

buildings; is that correct?

17

MR. KWAK:

18

MR. WILEY:

19

Correct.
With the same floor plan; is

that correct?

20

MR. KWAK:

21

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
Let's move on to the next.

22

Again, Mr. Chairman, until we hit the eight, I think

23

everything is going to be the same.

24

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

25

MR. GASKILL:

All right.

You're just about to hit
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1

the eight right now.

2

MR. WILEY:

3

MR. GASKILL:

4

MR. WILEY:

Mr. Kwak, 101 Lanning is an

eight-unit building; is that correct?

7

MR. KWAK:

8

MR. WILEY:

9

That takes us to 101

Lanning.

5
6

Good timing.

Yes.
And this one, the front

facade doesn't have parking in the front but it

10

appears that the parking is located on the left side

11

which is --

12

MR. GASKILL:

13

MR. WILEY: -- Church Street.

14

MR. GASKILL: No.

15

second.

16

on Poplar.

Lanning -- give me a

The parking is on Lanning.

17

MR. WILEY:

18

MR. GASKILL:

19

Church.

Poplar.

The frontage is

Okay.

Or the building facade is

on Poplar.

20

MR. WILEY:

The first facade is Lanning.

21

And the left side where the parking is located is

22

Poplar.

23

MR. GASKILL:

24

MR. WILEY:

25

The reverse.

Oh, the reverse.

Okay.

the front facade is really the front facade on

So,
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1

Poplar.

2

area.

And Lanning is servicing for the parking

3

MR. KWAK:

4

MR. GASKILL:

5

MR. WILEY:

6

Correct.
Correct.

And the access is there.

And

the number of parking spaces in that is eight?

7

MR. KWAK:

Correct.

8

MR. GASKILL:

9

MR. WILEY:

Yes.

Let's talk about the floor

10

plan on these eight units.

11

four units per floor; is correct that?

12

MR. KWAK:

13

MR. WILEY:

So, how many -- there's

Correct.
And describe the layout.

It

14

looks like the layout is identical for the four units

15

that's on the first floor.

16

MR. KWAK:

17

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
And in terms of layout, it

18

looks very similar to the layout that's in the

19

four-unit --

20

MR. KWAK:

21

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
-- parcels.

The difference

22

being, you effectively have two front doors that

23

you're utilizing there.

24

two-bedrooms, walk-in closets, dining room as well as

25

living room with a kitchen; is that right?

But, again, it has the
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1

MR. KWAK:

2

MR. WILEY:

3

6

Correct.

Mr. Chairman, does anyone

have any questions regarding this property?

4
5

Yes.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Any questions Board

members?
MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I have one question on

7

all the properties.

8

here, these pictures, when the buildings have been

9

shown, throughout all these properties showing the

10

right and the left facades, I've noted the lack of

11

windows which is very disconcerting from an emergency

12

exit standpoint.

13

people on the second floor in this last setting.

14

just find it bothersome that there's no exit from the

15

second floor if there was some sort of an

16

emergency that required people to vacate the building

17

rather quickly.

18

Looking at this slide right

And especially when you have eight

MR. KWAK:

It

From a business standpoint,

19

we're required to have means of egress vis-a-vie a

20

5.7 square feet through each bedroom windows in light

21

of ventilation at each of the living room areas.

22

that's why if you look at the floor plan, it's

23

situated such that the living and dining areas is in

24

the front and the bedrooms are at the rear.

25

That's why you don't see the side windows.

And

But they
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1

do have ample means of egress in case of a fire or

2

anything else that may be an emergency.

3
4

MR. WILEY:

Because they can either go

out the front or the back?

5

MR. KWAK:

6

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
So, two means of escape.

7

Any other questions on the floor plan or the

8

elevation?

9
10

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

So, you're saying, a

second floor, they're going to go out a window?

11

MR. KWAK:

Correct.

I mean, you have

12

typically -- if you look at even a single-family home

13

on a second floor, they all do go out of a window

14

per se.

15
16

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
Okay John.

17
18

Any other questions?

MR. WILEY:

Let's get to the next

property.

19

MR. GASKILL:

20

MR. RIVERA:

58 East Pitman, sir.
Mr. Chairman, my apology.

21

I keep doing this to you.

22

corner one with the retaining wall?

23

MR. GASKILL:

At Lanning, was that the

Lanning is the corner

24

property that has a retaining wall around the

25

perimeter of it, that is correct.
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1
2

MR. RIVERA:

Is that going to stay with

the new proposed building?

3

MR. GASKILL:

The retaining wall, the

4

block wall, is to be removed and then the property

5

regraded.

6

MR. RIVERA:

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

8

MR. WILEY:

9

Thank you.
Okay John.

All right.

East Pitman,

this, again, is an eight-unit, correct, Mr. Kwak?

10

MR. KWAK:

Yes, sir.

11

MR. WILEY:

12

eight parking spaces?

13

MR. KWAK:

14

MR. WILEY:

And in this case, there's

Yes.
And they are right off of

15

East Pitman Street.

Let's go to the floor plan.

16

There's a floor plan identical to the previous floor

17

plan with the eight units; --

18

MR. KWAK:

19

MR. WILEY:

20

MR. KWAK:

21

MR. WILEY:

Yes.
-- is that correct?
Correct.
Does anyone have any

22

questions about this facade and this floor plan?

23

not, Mr. Chairman, I move to the next property.

24
25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

If

Just -- so, these

are -- there's two stairways to get up to the second
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1

floor on this?

2

MR. KWAK:

Yes, sir.

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

And one covers two units

4

on one side and the other one covers -- no, four

5

units on one side.

6

MR. KWAK:

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

8

MR. WILEY:

9

No.

One stairwell covers -Two units.

Two units upstairs and then

they have access to two units downstairs.

And the

10

other floor gets you -- I'm saying two units

11

upstairs --

12

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

13

MR. WILEY:

14

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

15

MR. WILEY:

16

And two down?

Yes.
Any questions?

Let's move on to the next

property.

17

MR. GASKILL: 122 Denny.

18

MR. WILEY:

19

Again, this is an eight-unit.

How many parking spaces do we have here?

20

MR. GASKILL:

I believe we have 11.

21

MR. WILEY:

Eleven (11) parking spaces.

22

right.

23

plan, Mr. Kwak, is, again, identical to the previous

24

eight-unit floor plans that we've been looking prior

25

to now?

And that's off of Denny.

All

And then the floor
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1

MR. KWAK:

2

MR. WILEY:

Yes, sir.
Does any Board members have

3

any questions about this parcel?

4

to the next one.

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

MR. GASKILL:

7
8
9

If not, I'd move on

Great John.

49 and 53 Cumberland

Avenue.
MR. WILEY:

This one has eight parking

spaces; is that correct?

10

MR. KWAK:

11

MR. WILEY:

Correct.
And Mr. Kwak, this is, again,

12

the same layout, four units on each floor with the

13

same floor plan as we have examined with the other

14

eight-unit buildings?

15

MR. KWAK:

16

MR. WILEY:

Yes, sir.
Does any Board members have

17

any questions regarding the elevation of floor plans

18

to this parcel?

19

on to the next property.

All right, Mr. Chairman, we'll move

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21

MR. GASKILL:

22
23

Great John.

This is Cumberland Avenue

at, I believe it's Cumberland and Lincoln.
MR. WILEY:

24

little bigger.

25

spaces are on this one?

And the parking here looks a

How many units -- how many parking

60

1

MR. KWAK:

2

MR. WILEY:

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

4

We have 12.
Twelve.

MR. GASKILL:

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

What's that, sir?

MR. KWAK:

9

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

No, there's no fence.

MR. WILEY:

12

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

13

MR. KWAK:

14

MR. WILEY:

What did

Maybe the canopy possibly?
Is that the canopy?

Yes, sir.
The canopy that's over the

windows.

16

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

17

MR. WILEY:

18

What is that?

I see?

11

15

Is that like a fence in

the front?

8

10

Is that a fence in the

front?

5

7

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Again, Mr. Kwak, same floor

plan as the other eight-unit building?

19

MR. KWAK:

20

MR. WILEY:

21

MR. KWAK:

22

MR. WILEY:

Yes, sir.
Is that correct?
Yes.
Mr. Chairman, if there's no

23

question regarding the floor plan or the facade on

24

this property, I'd move to the next property.

25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

Any questions?
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1

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I have a question, and

2

I just noticed it, that that property that we just

3

looked at, has a canopy.

4

a canopy?

5

MR. WILEY:

Do all the properties have

They do all.

They all

6

require a bulk variance because under your ordinance,

7

that's considered an intrusion into your front yard

8

setback.

9

if and when we get to site plan.

10

But, again, we would deal with those issues

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I was going to say,

11

that was my next question, is that then the build of

12

the setback from the street is not to the building?

13

It would be to the canopy?

14
15

MR. WILEY:
our understanding.

16
17

Under your ordinance, that's

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:
clarifying that.

MR. WILEY:

19

MR. GASKILL:

21

I'm just

Thank you.

18

20

Okay.

You're welcome.
This is the last eight-unit

property.
MR. WILEY:

Okay.

Mr. Kwak, again, this

22

is the same floor layout as the other eight-unit

23

buildings; is that correct?

24

MR. KWAK:

25

MR. WILEY:

Yes.

Correct.

And Mr. Chairman, if anybody
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1

has any questions about either the floor plan or the

2

elevation to this parcel.

3
4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Any questions anyone?

I don't see any so...

5

MR. WILEY:

All right.

We can move to my

6

third and last witness, our planner, Mr. Spatz.

7

he here?

Dave?

8

MR. SPATZ:

9

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

10
11
12
13
14

Is

MR. WILEY:

Okay, I am here.
There he is.

So, again, we'll use, I

guess, Corey's assistance here.
MR. SPATZ:

If I can be allowed to share

my screen, I can -MR. WILEY:

Okay.

That would be great.

15

I think Corey will be relieved of the

16

responsibility.

He'd be delighted.

17

MR. SPATZ:

Let me open up my exhibit.

18

At the prior meeting, I believe we went

19

through the photo exhibits and the areas for both

20

what at the time were eight units -- 12 units that

21

had been reduced in size.

22

properties that all remains the same.

23

just need to provide that testimony for the two-unit

24

buildings; is that correct, Mr. Wiley?

25

MR. WILEY:

But obviously, the
So, I think I

Well, I think the Board from
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1

last time wanted to refine a little bit more about

2

the surrounding neighborhoods.

3

MR. SPATZ:

Yes.

I will --

4

MR. WILEY:

I think we'll rely on the

5

previous pictures that were submitted in the April

6

22nd application --

7

MR. SPATZ:

8

MR. WILEY: -- but that we'll supplement

9

Right.

the testimony as far as individual lots go with maybe

10

more information regarding the surrounding

11

neighborhood.

12

MR. SPATZ:

Certainly.

And I'll redo the

13

testimony, the planning testimony for the use

14

variances themselves.

15

photos for the two-unit properties, this is 59

16

Cumberland Avenue which is vacant with structures on

17

either side of it.

18

So, just to quickly show the

As with the last time, provided a map

19

showing what the uses were surrounding our property.

20

Here is the site here up in the top left of the

21

photograph.

22

side surrounded by vacant properties.

23

side of Smith includes commercial.

24

there's multi-family uses along Walnut Street.

25

It's got single-family homes on either
The opposite

So you, again,

The opposite side of our property is

64

1

church properties.

2

commercial.

3

surrounding our property that would allow our type of

4

development.

5

Cumberland showing the property is vacant.

6

you can see, all of the vacant land surrounding our

7

property, 59 Cumberland.

8

little bit more of a context of what is surrounding

9

our property.

10

They're vacant.

Mixed use is

So, again, there are a mixture of uses

Here are two aerial photographs of 59
Then as

So, that just gives a

So, I will go to the next two-family

11

home.

12

a vacant piece of property, structures, smaller

13

structures on either side of us.

14

vacant.

15

uses are.

16

hatch which, again, indicates one and two-story, a

17

single-family and multi-family structures.

18

vacant land.

19

This is 78 North Broad Street.

Again, we have

This property is

Here is the map which indicates what the
Here is the subject property in the cross

Lots of

The opposite side of Pearl Street from

20

our property, has single and multi-family residences.

21

This area has a limited amount of commercial but it

22

does have a mixture of residential land uses and a

23

significant amount of vacant properties.

24

two aerial photographs which show the significant

25

amount of vacant properties. And then the photographs

And, again,
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1

show the smaller one-story single-family structures

2

on either side of our property.

3

two.

4

So that shows those

Looking at the four-unit building, this

5

is Elvin which, again, are dilapidated single-family

6

structures.

7

Here's, again, an aerial photograph which shows our

8

property.

9

some combined houses.

We went through the use the last time.

And then there is a bit of development;
This, again, shows Elvin.

10

And, again, a mixture of smaller single-family homes;

11

some multi-family homes; vacant properties as well

12

surrounding our site.

13

19 Walnut Street, again, vacant.

Two,

14

two-and-a-half story buildings on either side of us.

15

The aerial photograph, again, showing the property,

16

adult daycare center, the church around us.

Again, a

17

mixture of vacant and developed properties.

Here,

18

again, is another aerial showing the neighborhood

19

with some larger structures and then detached

20

single-family homes.

21

we're proposing.

22

reduced the size of all our properties; all of our

23

buildings to now two-and-a-half stories and

24

eliminated the variances for that.

25

Again, similar in size to what

Some of them are taller.

Here is Denny.

We've

Again, one of the

66

1

four-unit buildings.

Again, vacant land.

We went

2

through that.

3

development around it which are a mixture of detached

4

homes.

5

spread out; a significant amount of vacant land

6

surrounding.

Again, the aerial photographs show the

Some are closer to each other; some are

7

Here is 146 South Broad, again, a vacant

8

lot.

9

us.

A two-and-a-half story building adjacent to
Similar in height.

Religious building across

10

the street, another two-and-a-half story building.

11

Again, similar in height to what we're proposing.

12

Here's the property.

13

can see a series of detached two-and-a-half story

14

buildings.

15

of the street from us.

16

is Poplar Street.

17

again, showing our property and then just some not

18

quite attached but properties that are adjacent to

19

us.

20

story buildings; lots of vacant land surrounding us;

21

number of church properties on either side.

It's a corner lot.

Then you

The church property on the opposite side
And the last of the four-unit

Here is an aerial photograph,

Again, there are a mixture of two-and-a-half

22

And now let's look at the -- the

23

buildings that we proposed for -- this is the

24

Cumberland Avenue property.

25

Cumberland.

Again, vacant.

49

A shed that was -- this is 53 Cumberland
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1

so two of the structures that are part of the

2

development.

3

lot; significant amount of vacant land surrounding

4

us.

5

adjacent to us.

And, again, the aerial shows the vacant

Some two, two-and-a-half story buildings

6

Here is East Pitman.

7

properties.

8

either side.

9

the property.

Again, vacant

Two, two-and-a-half story structures on
Here's the aerial photograph showing
Again, religious institutions near us;

10

some commercial spaces; the cemetery.

11

showing the properties.

So, again,

12

This is 122 Denny which we saw, again,

13

here some houses are closer together but, again, a

14

mixture of homes that are two, two-and-a-half stories

15

scattered amongst vacant properties as well.

16

then the last of the eight-unit buildings on

17

Cumberland, a vacant piece of property.

18

photograph, again, showing scattered structures.

19

Again, a significant amount of vacant land.

20

some commercial properties along Main.

21

And

An aerial

You have

So what we have really consistently

22

around our properties is a mixture of buildings that

23

are similar in size to what we are now proposing; a

24

mixture of all difference types of residential land

25

uses; religious institutions; commercial in our area.
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1

These properties were all designated for

2

redevelopment a number of years ago.

3

has taken place.

4

single-family residential which is what your zoning

5

permits.

6

the proposal here is for a variety of development

7

types, two-unit structures, four-unit structures and

8

eight-unit structures.

9

units that we've put on them because we're able to

10

No development

Those were suggested for

But, again, that hasn't taken place and so

The larger the lot, the more

provide a significant amount of parking.

11

So, your Board Engineer provided in her

12

reports a very helpful sort of summary and

13

description of what needs to be looked at for use

14

variances and I'll specifically go through and

15

address it.

16

all of the properties that are part of this.

17

obviously, the neighborhoods are different but they

18

are consistent in terms of significant amount of

19

vacant land, detached structures, two-and-a-half

20

stories.

21

number of single-family units.

22

I think that these are consistent for
So,

Some of them are multi-units, and then a

So, the first thing that we need to look

23

at, is compatibility of the proposed used with

24

surrounding uses and that is certainly the case here

25

as shown from the photographs.

The map indicating
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1

the uses in the area.

2

consistent with the development which really does

3

have a mixture of uses on them.

4

residential uses on all of the properties previously

5

as was discussed earlier.

6

Our residential uses are

There are

Nearly all of the properties are vacant

7

at this time.

They were residentially developed but

8

they're vacant now.

9

them, the structures are in extremely poor condition

Those that have structures on

10

and are boarded up and have been vacant for many,

11

many years. So, what we're proposing, I believe, is

12

certainly compatible with the surrounding uses.

13

We need to look at mitigating factors for

14

the use variance and, I believe that taking vacant

15

land and putting development on it that in terms of

16

use is consistent with it.

17

residential uses in a commercial zone or commercial

18

uses in a residential zone.

19

uses which are foreseen by your redevelopment plan.

20

We're not looking to put

These are residential

And the lots -- the smaller lots we've

21

proposed two units and four units.

The larger lots

22

we've proposed up to eight units.

23

there's been a significant scale-back both in terms

24

of the number of units in the building.

25

increased parking and the parking is now consistent.

As was described,

We've
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1
2

And I will discuss that a little bit further.
The other things we need to look at is

3

that our use will not injure or detract from the use

4

of neighboring properties.

5

case in any of the situations.

6

setbacks for those uses.

7

the middle of residential neighborhoods, developing

8

them with consistent residential uses, I think,

9

certainly only benefits those uses.

I don't think that's the
We are providing

Taking vacant properties in

As Mr. Gaskill

10

mentioned, drainage improvements are going to be made

11

on these properties.

12

vacant and the water percolates into them, there are

13

no drainage facilities at all.

14

provided and this will be discussed further looking

15

at the more site plan aspect of it in all cases.

16

Currently, although, they're

These will be

Sidewalk improvements are going to be

17

made which will certainly benefit the walking public

18

in the surrounding neighborhoods.

19

being provided on site.

20

residential site improvement standards.

21

cases we do meet your local standards.

22

RSIS is what governs here, there is an allowance in

23

the RSIS to provide less parking than what their

24

standards are as your engineer had discussed.

25

So, parking is

We don't meet the
In certain
But since the

The standards in the RSIS govern over the
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1

entire state.

2

rural areas.

3

parking.

4

to get what is called a De Minimus Exception to

5

provide less parking if you can justify that there is

6

sufficient parking for what you're proposing; that

7

there are other avenues to provide mass transit that

8

local conditions and local ordinances acknowledge a

9

lower amount of parking.

10

So, it's urban areas, suburban areas,
They're all the same standard for

And so you can relax that parking standard

And I think that's the case

here.

11

In every instance, we are providing at a

12

minimum, one parking space for each unit.

13

cases we are providing more than one space per unit

14

which will allow any apartments that have an

15

additional car to find parking.

16

needed, that will be an availability for the guest

17

parking.

18

neighborhoods, any development of this site would

19

require parking, require driveways which will have an

20

impact on street parking so there's nothing different

21

taking place as part of this.

22

we've provided the maximum amount of parking with on

23

the building.

24
25

In certain

Where that's not

In terms of its impact on the surrounding

Wherever possible,

The next thing we need to look at is
whether the use will not detract from the character
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1

of the neighborhood.

It's certainly doesn't detract

2

from the character of the neighborhood.

3

structures that were being proposed.

4

smaller moderate units, moderately-priced units,

5

moderate-sized units that will certainly fit in

6

within the neighborhood.

7

single-family home on any of these lots, I think,

8

would be out of scale with the rest of the

9

neighborhood.

You saw the

These are

Development of a large

So, I think, what is being proposed is

10

actually more in line with local development

11

than what could be built under your ordinance.

12

The next thing we need to look at is the

13

use of the properties adjacent, are they adequately

14

safeguarded?

15

sufficient drainage being provided for each of the

16

units and we'll go in more depth if we get to the

17

site plan stage.

18

wherever possible.

19

being provided so I think that there is adequate

20

safeguards for the adjacent properties.

21

And I believe that they are.

There is

Landscaping will be provided
So I think that setbacks are

The next thing is whether the property is

22

suitable for the intended use.

I believe it

23

certainly is residential use within a residential

24

neighborhood.

25

have more units than what is permitted within the

The zone permits residential uses.

We
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1

zone but I believe each of the lots can support that.

2

Again, these are all redevelopment properties that

3

for one reason or another, have not been developed.

4

Here you have a property owner is looking to make

5

these properties productive which benefits both the

6

neighborhoods, the surrounding properties, as well as

7

municipality.

8
9

Next, the use will serve the best
interest of the borough.

I believe it certainly

10

does.

11

and actually starts putting it into practice.

12

think that that is certainly important as Mr. Kwak

13

mentioned.

14

properties in a meaningful, reasonable way.

15

to help spur development on the other vacant

16

properties within the neighborhood.

17

people are not being dispossessed from the

18

properties.

19

buildings.

20

as a part of this.

21

development on the other vacant properties in the

22

neighborhoods which will certainly benefit all of

23

them.

24
25

It follows the redevelopment plan, supports it
So I

The goal is to both develop these
But also

There is no --

These are all either vacant or vacant
So there is nobody losing their housing
Hopefully this will spur

The next items that need to be looked at
really relate to utilities, drainage and traffic.
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1

They have been touched upon by Mr. Gaskill and they

2

will be gone into more depth if use variances are

3

approved and we get to the site plan stage.

4

will be more in-depth testimony regarding the

5

traffic, the utility connections which were

6

indicated, all exist.

7

proposing serves the purposes of zoning.

8

the health, safety and general welfare of the

9

municipality, provides housing that, in our reduced

10

There

And I believe that what we're
It protects

format, suits the density of the neighborhood.

11

And in terms of improving the esthetic

12

improvement within the area, certainly taking vacant

13

or dilapidated properties, putting residents on them

14

that provide needed housing for existing residents,

15

new residents of Penns Grove, I think is certainly a

16

benefit.

17

grant the use variances for the projects that we're

18

proposing.

19

be happy to answer any questions about the use

20

variance component.

21

And, I believe that it is appropriate to

So, that concludes my testimony.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Thanks, Dave.

I will

Any

22

questions for Dave from any of the Board members?

23

Is everybody awake?

Any questions from anybody?

24

MR. SPATZ:

Mr. Rivera.

25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

Yes, Rich.
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1

MR. SPATZ:

2

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

3

his hand up too.

4

can't hear you.

5

muted.

Rich.

6
7

Rich, how about you?

Oh, go ahead, Rich.
Rich.

I

Rich, you're

Okay, we're going to go to Ron.
Ron is not a member of the

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Ron's not a member.

That's right Ron, you're not.
MR. GIORANDO:

I can't vote.

But you

mean to tell me I can't make some comments?

12
13

Mr. Giordano, he's got

Board on this particular matter.

10
11

Good.

MR. RHONE:

8
9

And Mr. Giordano.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

I don't think you're

allowed to make comments either.

14

MR. RHONE:

Not that he's not allowed.

15

We had a lengthy discussion.

16

public comment despite, you know, recommendations and

17

advisement.

18

conscience but he was properly advised about his role

19

during this meeting.

20

He can't make any

But, again, he can act on his own

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Ron, I really don't

21

think you can make a comment even.

22

MR. RHONE:

23

MR. GIORDANO:

24
25

I mean -When it's open to the

public, I can make comments?
MR. RHONE:

When it's open to the public,

76

1

you can make a comment.

2

wear your hat as a councilman regardless of whether

3

you choose to or not unfortunately.

4
5

MR. GIORDANO:

Well, I'll wait until it's

open to the public and then I'll make a comment.

6
7

But just remember that you

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Anyone else?

Rich has his hand up.

8

MS. JACKSON:

9

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

10

Okay.

I have a question.
Go ahead Jennette

Jackson.

11

MS. JACKSON:

Just a couple of things.

12

I've listened to Mr. Wright and he had brought up the

13

fact of what income level was this going to affect.

14

And do you understand that the main level in Penns

15

Grove and what that is?

16

mortgage is less than what you're proposing for a

17

rent.

18

an area that even if they were to buy, their mortgage

19

wouldn't even cost that much.

20

understanding the amount that you're proposing for

21

rent.

And my house that I have, my

You're proposing $1,600 to $1,700 a month for

22

MR. RHONE:

So, I'm not

So before we go any further

23

and I thank you for your question and interest, Ms.

24

Jackson.

25

I know you're brand new.
MS. JACKSON:

Okay.
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1

MR. RHONE:

And so -- and this is also

2

for some other new members who just joined us here

3

for their first application hearing.

4

Board in assessing these, you have to remember what

5

your role is here, is not the same.

6

free-range of questions.

7

criteria that was explained.

8
9

The Planning

It's not like a

It goes back towards that

So what happens is that individuals to
put forth an application.

In this case, it's like a

10

bifurcated meeting, two parts.

11

handling right now is for the use variance.

12

are trying -- in this case, they're trying to put a

13

multi-residential in areas that were zoned for

14

single-family homes that they are presenting.

15

is the issue that we have to focus on, just that.

16

The part that we're
So they

That

Now, I understand those are valid

17

questions for a different form.

We had that

18

discussion last time regarding, you know, economics

19

and things of that nature.

20

broader picture that is now part of a hearing.

21

here you're just judging based upon a criteria.

22

I believe that was the engineer for the applicant

23

that pretty much explained it very well, Mr. Spatz,

24

as he went down trying to address different parts

25

that the applicant has to meet.

Those are part of a
So

Them expressing

And
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1

that, you know, there you have an extraordinary need

2

based upon what they're bringing is for the benefit.

3

So to put it in laymen's terms, you want

4

the good to outweigh the bad for the community.

5

you want to be granting an exception to allow that

6

use to be here.

7

want an exception if you're in agreement with what

8

they presented to allow them to put this structure

9

up.

10
11

Oh, the planner.

That'll be the use.

I'm sorry.

And

You

And let's say, okay, you

guys are allowed to put this here.
The next step is, are we going to grant

12

you the variances, the bulk variances which are

13

pretty much what we're going into the code and things

14

of that nature that we're discussing, the ordinances,

15

those would be relief from that or exemptions from

16

meeting certain things or altering covenant.

So for

17

right now, we're just talking about the use.

So if

18

you guys don't approve the use, there's no need to

19

talk about the other variances they require.

20

that's why we split the meeting in half as a means of

21

efficiency as well.

22

So

So the main thing is based upon what you

23

all heard and you're going to have a discussion

24

amongst yourselves and remember it's out in the open.

25

Do you believe this project will be of such benefit
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1

and the need is there, that you're going to grant the

2

ability to put these here.

3

So when you're asking questions, even though you may

4

have some very real concerns and those economic

5

things are all valid, everyone has their concerns,

6

remember, we're just looking at that criteria.

7

know sometimes it can be difficult.

8

part we're allowed to address.

9
10
11

MS. JACKSON:

That's the first step.

And I

But that's the

So even a question about

the fire escape, that's not for this one?
MR. RHONE:

No.

I mean, I think the fire

12

escape could fall into how appropriate it is.

13

will go to maybe more towards the bulk variances

14

aspect of the things and things of that nature.

15

But we're just looking at the use first.

16

think whether or not these multi-residential homes

17

should go here.

18

it easy as I can.

19

any other members?

That's the first part.

That

Do you

I'm putting

Anybody else have any questions;

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21

MR. RIVERA:

Richard has his hand up.

What I'm asking is that

22

basically right now these areas that they want to

23

construct these apartments or homes in, are zoned for

24

single-family homes; is that correct?

25

MR. RHONE:

Yes.
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1

MR. RIVERA:

So it's up to us as a Board

2

to come to some kind of a conclusion or vote or what

3

have you in the end, whether or not we're going to

4

grant them permission to build multi-family dwellings

5

on these properties.

Is that correct?

6

MR. RHONE:

That's correct.

7

MR. WILEY:

Basically it would be

8

limited to the number of units that we're proposing

9

on each site.

Now, you know, site plan can get into

10

configuration of the building.

11

deal with some of the bulks, maybe the building is

12

going to have to change in configuration, etc.

13

for today, the decision is the number of units per

14

parcel.

15

know, because there's so many bulk variances, you can

16

say, well, that's fine but you got to change this,

17

that and the other thing to qualify as a site plan.

18

You know, we have to

But

And after that, everything else is, you

So today's vote is basically determining

19

the number of units on the particular parcel.

20

made our proposal between two, four and eight for

21

various properties.

22
23

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
hand up.

24
25

Okay, Rich, I see your

Go ahead, Rich.
MR. RIVERA:

Chair?

We've

Can you hear me now, Mr.
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1

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

2

MR. RIVERA:

I can hear you.

For the previous witness

3

that just testified, the planning expert, he's

4

testified all across the state, I believe he said,

5

at the last meeting, correct?

6

MR. SPATZ:

Mostly in the northern part

7

of New Jersey but I have testified in Monmouth County

8

and surrounding areas.

9
10

MR. RIVERA:

And you've done this

probably over a 100 times?

11

MR. SPATZ:

In terms of meetings,

12

probably over 5,000 times but maybe 70

13

municipalities.

14

MR. RIVERA:

Seventy municipalities,

15

5,000 times.

And you testified here today that these

16

projects are compatible; --

17

MR. SPATZ:

Yes.

18

MR. RIVERA -- that they're not injurious;

19

that they're not -- what was the other word?

20

Defective or?

21
22
23

MR. SPATZ:
the neighborhood.

That they don't detract from

Was that --

MR. RIVERA:

Detract, yes.

Thank you.

24

And that there are other buildings, other structures

25

in some of these neighborhoods that are at the same
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1

height or taller, correct?

2

MR. SPATZ:

3

MR. RIVERA:

Yes.
And there are existing

4

structures that are also multi-family you testified;

5

is that correct?

6

MR. SPATZ:

7

MR. RIVERA:

There are, yes.
I just wanted to make sure

8

that I was hearing everything and following this

9

properly so thank you, Mr. Chairman.

10

Thank you for

answering the questions.

11

MR. SPATZ:

You're welcome.

12

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Anyone else have any

13

questions?

14

right, you can't talk, Ron, not yet.

15

Ron, did you have a question?

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

That's

Dena?

Can I just clarify

16

something because since it was mentioned, I wanted to

17

clarify something with the fire escape.

18

building code official.

19

would not handle at Planning Board.

20

clarify that so that you know.

So that's something that we

21

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

22

you can just jump right in.

23

see it.

24
25

That is the

I just wanted to

Thank you, Dena.

Dena,

When you wave, I can't

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Well, I don't know.

I can see everybody so I don't always know everyone's
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1

machine.

I just didn't want to cut off anyone

2

because we do have a court reporter so I wanted to

3

make sure I spoke later.

4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Thanks, Dena.

5

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I do have one concern.

6

If we're looking at this from a use standpoint and

7

about these properties being suitable for their

8

intended use whether they serve the best interest of

9

the borough, etc., etc.

And what I would like to

10

note is that I don't believe they do serve the best

11

interests in the borough because what happens when

12

you have a single-family property, single-family from

13

a tax structure, you only have a single-family to

14

impact the borough as in the schools, fire

15

department, the police department.

16

But when you have multiple units on one

17

lot, and in this instance, we have multiple lots with

18

multiple units, it is now going to impact the borough

19

much more so from a school standpoint, sewer.

20

keep talking about public transportation.

21

community that is land-locked between Carneys Point

22

and the river.

23

around here for people.

24

Philadelphia or somewhere where you can go to an

25

empty vacant lot and put up these, you know, these

They

We are a

There is no public transportation
This is not North

84

1

structures.

2

So I do see that the use of these

3

buildings is more detrimental to the borough from a

4

tax and cost structure when you have to utilize the

5

schools, the sewer, the trash pickup, the police, the

6

fire department.

7

like to point out from the use of these properties.

8
9
10

So that's just the point that I'd

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Thank you, Maryanne.

Anyone else have any questions or statements?
Richard?

11

MR. RIVERA:

Yes.

Thanks again.

My

12

colleague just brought up a good point.

13

to the area footages that the expert testified to,

14

he pointed out that there were religious institutions

15

on at least four of those sites, if I'm not mistaken.

16

Is that correct, Mr. Spatz?

17

MR. SPATZ:

Going back

Near them, not on the

18

properties but nearby in the neighborhood on a number

19

of those properties.

20

MR. RIVERA:

All right.

And we're not

21

getting any taxes from them.

22

sure that I saw the aerial footage correctly.

23

you.

24

MR. SPATZ:

25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

I just wanted to make

You're welcome.
Anyone else?

Thank
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1
2

MR. RHONE:

You may want to open it up to

public, I guess, again at this point.

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

4

on here from the public.

5

public.

6

Ron, I can't hear you.
MR. GIORDANO:

So go ahead, Ron.

Is it open to the public

yet?

9
10

I can't tell from the

Of course, Ron is here.

7
8

I don't even know who is

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Yes, I just opened it

up.

11

MR. GIORDANO:

I like what Maryanne had

12

to say.

As a matter of fact, that's what my comment

13

was going to be.

14

percent or more of Section 8's in this town.

15

the property owner that's bearing the burden for the

16

taxes in this town, as well as the school taxes.

17

If you add more apartments to this town --

18

As a property owner, we have 70

MR. RHONE:

It's

Mr. Giordano, I'm only

19

cutting you off cause I love you.

20

not i line with what I was stating earlier in terms

21

that we have look at only what they're applying for.

22

So your comments are outside of that plus you're a

23

councilman so I'm trying to do you a favor.

24

being rude.

25

MR. GIORDANO:

That comment is

I'm talking as a

Sorry to

86

1

homeowner, not a councilman.

2

MR. RHONE:

I understand but I'm --

3

MR. GIORDANO:

It's a hardship for me to

4

have more apartments in this town and I have to pay

5

the taxes on.

6

I'm saying anything wrong.

7

what they believe.

8

homeowner where I stand.

9

wrong?

10

That's my comment.

I don't see where

The Board has to vote on

I'm just telling them as a

MR. RHONE:

Am I saying something

I understand what you're

11

saying, Mr. Giordano.

We can talk off-line about it

12

but that's just not in line with the recommendations.

13

I appreciate it.

14

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

15

MR. WRIGHT:

Anyone else?

So anything I say -- Mr.

16

Giordano had a good point.

17

of line.

18

about --

19

Okay.

I don't know if I'm out

In terms of taxes, I know we can't talk

MR. RHONE:

Correct.

Taxes would be

20

outside of the scope of the application.

21

we're only --

22

MR. WRIGHT:

23

MR. RHONE:

Remember,

Even -Look at what you received

24

from Madam Secretary.

That application packet is

25

what you should be reviewing based upon a criteria
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1

that I and Mr. Spatz were discussing as well as the

2

engineer.

3

MR. WRIGHT:

So in other words, if I

4

wanted to talk about gentrification, that would be in

5

another meeting?

6

MR. RHONE:

7

MR. WRIGHT:

8

MR. GIORDANO:

9

Definitely not this one.
Okay.
So the hardship on a town

doesn't consider any use tax?

10

considered?

11

considered?

12

That's not

The hardship on the city is not

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Are you asking me, Ron?

13

Look.

The thing we should be considering, of course,

14

is the variances that are needed to be able to go

15

forward with this.

16

MR. WRIGHT:

I think Mr. Rhone wants us

17

to vote on whether or not we are going to allow

18

this company to build multi-family homes on these

19

eight or nine properties that they've suggested.

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

22

Chairman.

23

right now.

24

hand raised.

25

And these are all -Excuse me, Mr.

There's someone still from public comment
There's someone's Ipad that has their

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Ipad.
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2

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
Greg.

We'll get back to you,

Ipad?

5
6

MS. SCARPACI:

Good evening, Mr.

Chairman.

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

8

MS. SCARPACI:

9

Railroad Avenue.

10

notices.

11

Moore-Johnson.

12
13

Right now

it's public comment.

3
4

Right.

Is that Irene?
This is Irene Scarpaci,

I am in receipt of two 200-foot

I would like some clarification from Ms.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

Ms.

Moore-Johnson, can you hear?

14

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

15

MS. SCARPACI:

I'm here.

I've been listening to the

16

meeting, tonight is a vote on only the variance to

17

allow multi-family dwellings in zones that are zoned

18

for single-family homes; is that correct?

19

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

20

variance.

21

use variance this evening.

22
23

Right.

They're bifurcating it.

MS. SCARPACI:

It's a use

So, yes, it's the

So that's the only thing

that is being voted on tonight?

24

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

25

MS. SCARPACI:

Yes.

Okay.

Could you speak a
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1

little bit about the density issue as to what is

2

required in the R-1 versus the density that's being 1

3

proposed by these multi-units?

4

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Well, right now the

5

density -- I'm looking just say, the two-unit.

6

Everything that's required, it's 3.8 dwelling units

7

per acre.

8

these are, you know, your minimum lot area is 9,000

9

square feet.

10

Now, these aren't acre lots.

So what

I'm looking at 59 Cumberland Avenue.

So

11

it would be -- that's 2,739 square feet.

12

take that and you know that an acre is 43,560 square

13

feet and you do your division, you have 31.8 dwelling

14

units per acre.

15

variance for gross maximum density.

16

it's a pre-existing nonconforming condition of the

17

minimum lot area.

18

So when you

So, yes, that's a part of the

MS. SCARPACI:

But realize that

So is that an issue that

19

is considered under this use variance that the

20

density would be, say, we're going to round up ten

21

times the amount that would be allowable under our

22

code?

23

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Well, they're asking

24

for a d(1) variance which is for use.

That would

25

include the relief necessary for density.

They can't
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1

control the size of the lot.

2

probably -- I can just give you the facts.

3
4

MS. SCARPACI:

So, I mean, I

But is that a

consideration for the Board under the use variance?

5

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

They would also

6

receive the necessary for density.

7

also --

8

MS. SCARPACI:

9

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

10

Under use or under site?
I'm sorry.

I didn't

hear you.

11
12

Would they

MR. WILEY:
site.

She said under use or under

Well, it's under use.

13

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

So it's under use.

14

Under use, yes.

15

is d(4).

16

the fact that it's a pre-existing condition, the

17

minimum size of the lot.

18

of this magnitude.

19

Because it's a d(1) and the density

I don't know how to explain it other than

MS. SCARPACI:

So you would have a density

So under use variance,

20

what other issues would be considered by the Board to

21

grant or deny this other than density?

22

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Well, they went

23

through.

The planner testified.

I have under my

24

comments, use variance comments -- well, in my review

25

letter the applicant should address the impact of the
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1

application on the following:

2

proposed use with surrounding uses; mitigating

3

factors for the use variance.

4

address the following items for the Board to be able

5

to evaluate the impact of the proposed application

6

on the neighboring properties and the borough; that

7

the use will not injure or detract from the use of

8

neighboring property; that the use will not detract

9

from the character of the neighborhood.

10

Compatibility of the

The applicant should

That the use of property adjacent to the

11

area included in the plan, is adequately

12

safe-guarded; that the property is suitable for the

13

intended use; that the use will serve the best

14

interest of the borough; that the use will not

15

adversely affect public sewers and facilities such as

16

water, sewer, police and fire protection; that the

17

use will not adversely affect the drainage facilities

18

in the adjacent neighborhood; that the use will not

19

adversely affect the safe flow of highway traffic;

20

and that adequate roadway accesses are provided to

21

protect roadways from undue congestion and hazards.

22

So these would be the same things you

23

would consider if they were to propose anything other

24

than what is -- what would be zoned.

25

in my letters for anything that you would need for a

You'll see this
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1

use variance.

2
3

MS. SCARPACI:

And R-1 is zoned for

single-family dwellings?

4

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

5

MS. SCARPACI:

6

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

7

check and see.

8

R-2 Zone for residential.

9

family.

10
11

It's R-2.

R-2?
I'm sorry.

So I can

Some may be R -- I'm looking at R-2,

MS. SCARPACI:

Yes, they are single

Any other uses?

Just

single-family?

12

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

I did not evaluate

13

that portion but they're all R-2 residential.

14

noted R-2 residential.

15

there are other uses there that there were

16

previous --

17
18

Grandfathered or

whatever?
MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:
yes.

Grandfathered or --

They're all R-2 residential.

21
22

I mean, it's very possible if

MS. SCARPACI:

19
20

It's

MS. SCARPACI:
Mr. Kwak.

Just one more question for

These are --

23

MR. RHONE:

24

MS. SCARPACI: -- designated as rentals,

25

Madam Councilwoman --

right, not condos or anything like that?
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1

MR. KWAK:

2

MR. RHONE:

3

MR. KWAK:

4

Darryl.
Yes, Mr. Kwak.
Did you want to say before I

answered?

5

MR. RHONE:

I was just advising and I'm

6

going to point it out again.

There is a reason why

7

the Mayor and also the councilperson, as members when

8

hearing these use variances, are required to not hear

9

that part of the application.

I'm just stating for

10

the record that I've advised those councilpeople who

11

are apart of this meeting who wish to make public

12

comment, try to be in line with those sentiments as

13

we evaluate the application before us during this

14

hearing.

15
16

I'm hearing a line of questioning that is
against --

17

MS. SCARPACI:

18

MR. RHONE:

That's my last question.

-- considered advice;

19

conversations that were held prior to this meeting;

20

memorandums and other advice given.

21

resistance of that.

22

consequences of that when you choose not to follow

23

those directives and everyone here is grown and they

24

do and act --

25

I'm seeing a

Now, sometimes there can be

MR. SCARPACI:

That was my last question.
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1
2

MR. RHONE:

-- in accordance with their

conscience.

3

MS. SCARPACI:

4

MR. RHONE:

I think Mr. Kwak --

I'm just trying to look out

5

for the borough.

6

and I just want to put that on the record.

7

That's what I've been charged to do

MR. WILEY:

And I could just note.

Here

8

you're approving a number of units.

9

whether they be condos or whether they be rentals,

10

are really not subject to this particular hearing.

11

For instance, you know, he could start his rentals

12

but would anything prescribe him in the future of

13

making them condos?

14

out thinking that he wanted condos and he could

15

switch it over to rentals.

16

control ownership or how it's going to be used.

17
18
19

Absolutely not.

How those units

He could start

MS. SCARPACI:

So the land use does not

I understand.

I thought I

heard him say that.
MR. WILEY:

He indicated that his plan

20

presently is for rental but if he changed his mind

21

and said I want to make them condos after approvals,

22

he'd be permitted to do so.

23
24
25

MS. SCARPACI:

Yeah.

Okay.

wanted to make sure I heard correctly.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

I just
Thank you.

Other members?
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1
2

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I just have one

question and I'm not sure --

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Excuse me.

Actually,

4

I'm opening it up -- I'm sorry.

5

Maryanne.

6

there anyone in the public that would like to say

7

anything?

8

the public.

9

have anything else to say?

10
11
12
13
14

It's still opened up to the public.

Public?

So is

I don't see or hear anyone from

We're going to go to -- do any members

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:
question.

I'll get back to you

I just have a

This is Maryanne.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Yes, that's right.

Maryanne, go ahead.
MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

And I'm not sure if

15

this is something for Ms. Moore-Johnson or Mr. Rhone.

16

But the question is, Ms. Moore-Johnson you just cited

17

eight uses that would -- could either detract or

18

injure or whatever; things for us to consider, the

19

uses of these properties for us to consider that was

20

listed in your letter.

21

As far as the Board is concerned, do we

22

have to in order to make a determination on this

23

application, do we have to have a -- how do I put

24

this -- do we have to cite all eight or can we just

25

pick and choose those items that we feel in our
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1

estimation would be detrimental to the community?

2

MR. RHONE:

Well, I guess, that will be a

3

question for, I guess, myself, not just for Ms.

4

Moore-Johnson.

5

She wants no parts of that.

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

Okay.

I'm just checking to

6

make sure that whatever those eight items she listed,

7

you know, does one suffice or do we have to comply

8

with all eight?

9

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

No, that's fine.

10

That sounded more legal than engineering.

11

Mr. Rhone.

12
13

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

So,

I'm learning the lines

here.

14

MR. RHONE:

That's a difficult question

15

to put on the record, I'm going to say, a tutorial

16

question.

17

your due diligence when you make your vote, again,

18

it's always considered a balancing test of the

19

various criteria.

20

What I would recommend in terms of doing

Ms. Moore-Johnson's letter, as the

21

engineer, provides information to you when you're

22

making that balancing of whether or not you're going

23

to decide to approve or disapprove, as well as Mr.

24

Spatz's testimony and his colleagues.

25

So you take what Ms. Moore-Johnson has
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1

provided giving you a heads-up of what you should be

2

looking at as the issues in line with Mr. Spatz's

3

testimony and his colleagues and their attorney.

4

then, you know, you ask the necessary questions of

5

both parties, your professionals and the applicant

6

and then you come to a decision based upon on what

7

you heard.

8

matters.

9

And

But only that information is that that

I understand that there's been other

10

questions regarding economics and history of the area

11

and things of that nature.

12

aren't important.

13

to this application here.

14

can be a frustrating proposition but, you know,

15

you're acting almost like a judge, a panel of

16

judges.

17

stay within.

18

Not to say that those

But those issues aren't relevant
And I know sometimes that

And so that's the criteria that you have to

So what I'm providing, what Ms. Johnson

19

is providing, Mr. Spatz, are almost various types of

20

jury instructions in a way that you can consider in

21

making your decision.

22

you have to measure and you have the information and

23

that is what this questioning period is for, to

24

gather further information so you can make an

25

informed decision.

Now you have the criteria that

Just so you know, to grant this
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1

variance, requires five affirmative votes.

2

five yes's in order to make that happen.

3

was helpful.

4
5

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

That's
I hope that

That was very helpful.

Thank you.

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Does anyone want to make

7

any statements with regard to how they're thinking

8

about this?

Well, I think I do.

9

You know, it's very difficult for me

10

knowing that we have a Master Plan; that we have

11

ordinances; and we have these things.

12

direct us on how we want our community to be

13

developed and how to proceed.

14

in and look at that and they decide that they don't

15

like that and they want to do what they want to do

16

and without regard to our Master Plan, and without

17

regard to the things in the plans and the things that

18

we want to see the community develop.

19

And they

And then, people come

And, you know, these are R-2 districts

20

and people, you know, just come in and want to put in

21

multi-unit dwellings what were residential districts

22

before.

23

together with us and try to comply with our laws and

24

ordinances that they have.

25

with something that we have, our laws or something

And I just think that people should work

If they see a problem
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1

that they feel that it's not right or that we could

2

improve, then they should work with us on that and

3

not just come in and just disregard it and come up

4

with their own plan.

5

MR. RHONE:

Mr. Chairman, I thank you for

6

your input.

7

applications aren't adversarial.

8

entities that come before a board, are trying to do

9

some type of development in a town that are going to

10

I just want to make it clear that these
Pretty much most

require some variances.

11

Use variances have apparently been

12

granted in the past that are similar; not that they

13

have any bearing on this one necessarily.

14

just to say, it's not that an applicant has a problem

15

with the municipality when they come before and ask

16

for relief.

17

an opportunity that they see as advantageous to the

18

town and perhaps themselves and, you know, they come

19

before the board to see if they agree with that.

But it's

It's just that, you know, they might see

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21

MR. RHONE:

Yeah --

So I just want to put that

22

out there as you measure.

I didn't want you to look

23

at it the wrong way or instruct others.

24

the proper way to look at it.

25

that clear.

But that's

I just wanted to make
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1

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

You know, like if we

2

have an R-2 district and you want to put in

3

eight units, I mean, you're talking about eight units

4

compared to one unit.

5

is working with us on anything.

6

MR. RHONE:

I mean, I don't see how that

I mean, honestly, you know,

7

if you disagree with that idea and proposal then you

8

vote your conscience.

9

that you can use and I think you came to your own

Just remember the criteria

10

assessment and that's fine.

I just want to make sure

11

you're looking at it in a proper way.

12

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

13

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

14

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Hello.

Who is that?
Hi.

God bless you.

15

This is Dr. Almeda Johnson.

16

and I didn't push the Star 6 to get in.

17

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

18

I tried to get in before

Almeda, I know who you

are.

19

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

20

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

21
22

Yes.

Is that Kenny?
How are you

doing?
MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Good.

I've listened

23

to the whole meeting and when it came time for the

24

public, I couldn't get in so I had to hang up and

25

redial and then the recorder said to push Star 6 to
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1

get into the public meeting.

2

Am I out of line right now, Ken?

3
4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

And I was listening.

No.

We'll take you

because I think we're winding down anyway.

5

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

I did hear Ms.

6

Jackson also mention some things and you put a block

7

on to that.

8

saying, $1,600, $1,700 monthly, will that include the

9

electric, water and heat for these people?

10

Do we

know that; did that include that?

11
12

And also in the rents that they were

MR. WILEY:
that.

You'll have to ask Mr. Kwak

I don't mind asking him that.

13

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

14

MR. WILEY:

I'm sorry?

I would have to ask my

15

witness, Mr. Kwak, about that.

16

to asking him that question if the chairman thinks

17

it's okay.

18

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

19

MR. WILEY:

20

irrelevant.

21
know.

23

okay.

24
25

Well --

Or he may think it's

So, I'll leave it up to you.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

22

I have no objection

I think she wants to

She's a citizen in the town so maybe it's

MR. WILEY:

Mr. Kwak, is the $1,600 gross

rent including utilities or not?
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1
2

MR. KWAK:
gross.

It does not include

3
4

No, it's not.

MR. WILEY:

--

So it's $1,600 plus utility

costs?

5

MR. KWAK:

6

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

7

Wow.

Correct.
Oh my goodness.

That's very expensive for our area here.

8
9

That's not

Also, I heard Mr. Kwak say the last time
at the last meeting, that he was looking to rent

10

these places to professionals.

That's what he had

11

said.

12

probably -- but he would be one of the residents in

13

Penns Grove as well to look after these buildings, et

14

cetera.

15

still planning on being in this area?

16

doesn't know anything about the area.

And that he would probably -- he didn't say

I didn't hear any of that tonight.

17

MR. RHONE:

Is he

He really

I appreciate your comment,

18

Dr. Johnson.

19

comment, I just want you to know that their

20

consideration of the relevance of that, could

21

determine whether or not they bring that question

22

before the Board to address or even --

23

But as the Board considers your public

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

24

the Board last month.

25

it up.

Well, it came before

That's why I was just bringing

In the minutes it will tell you or it would
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1

show that's what he said last month.

2
3

MR. WILEY:

We're not changing our

testimony regarding that.

4

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Who was I speaking

5

to just now because I can't see you?

6

answered?

7
8
9
10

MR. WILEY:

Who just

I'm the attorney for the

applicant.
MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

I'm sorry.

There's two people.

11

John Wiley is the attorney for the applicant and

12

Darryl Rhone is our Planning Board attorney.

13
14

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Oh, okay.

I don't

know which one was answering me so I can't tell that.

15

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

16

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

And I did also hear

17

a lady was asking and I think the question was

18

answered about windows in these different units, etc.

19

and for emergency escapes for them as well.

20

to ask this question.

21

Why not have elevators for emergencies?

22

answered already and I didn't hear it.

23
24
25

MR. WILEY:

I want

I hope it's not out of line.
Maybe he

I believe these are

two-stories now, Ms. Johnson, not three.
MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

I'm sorry?
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1
2
3

MR. WILEY:

They are now only two

stories.
MR. KWAK:

Right.

Also, John, if I may,

4

elevators are not considered a legal means of

5

egress in case of fire.

6

stairwells which are rated stairwells.

7

rated means that it takes one or two hours --

8
9

MR. WILEY:

That's why there are
Meaning,

Well, these are building code

issues but --

10

MR. KWAK:

11

MR. WILEY:

12

MR. KWAK:

13

MR. WILEY:

14

MR. KWAK:

Correct.
-- especially without -Correct.
I don't know any -And as far as Dr. Johnson

15

speaking about me looking at being a permanent

16

resident of Penns Grove, yes.

17

actively -- I have actively requested showings of

18

multi-family homes and single-family homes.

19

I have reached out to realtors and I've been looking.

20

There is a property on River Street.

21

little bungalow that I tried to make an offer but

22

that's already in negotiations.

I've actively,

And

That's like a

23

So, yes, I've -- as a matter of fact,

24

I have many different choices within Salem County

25

even at Carney's Point.

However, I want to be a
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1

resident of Penns Grove, not Carneys Point.

2

why I haven't really looked at Carneys Point.

3

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

That's

I'm sorry to

4

interrupt you, Mr. Kwak.

5

permanently moving here or you'd be just coming down

6

on certain dates in a month or a week whatever?

7

MR. KWAK:

8

retirement.

9

Penns Grove.

10
11

So, I will be a permanent resident of

So you will not be a

permanent resident?
MR. KWAK:

No.

I said I will be.

I'm 60

years old.

14
15

Well, it's kind of my

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

12
13

So that means that you'd be

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Oh, you will be.

You're much younger than I am.

16

MR. RHONE:

Ms. Johnson, I appreciate

17

your interest in Mr. Kwak.

And Mr. Kwak,

18

I thank you for your transparency about that.

19

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

20

MR. RHONE: I just want to remind the

21

Board that's not relevant to what we're weighing

22

right now.

23
24
25

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Thanks, Mr. Kwak.

All right, Almeda.

Thank you very much.
MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

I thank you for
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1

allowing me to come in at the time.

2

much.

3
4

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

You're welcome, Almeda.

Take care now.

5
6

Thank you so

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

Thank you.

You too.

Bye-bye.

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Anyone else?

I hear no

8

one else in the public or no other questions.

9

everybody understand what we're doing here?

10

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

11

if I may.

12
13

Does

Ken, one more thing,

This is Dr. Johnson.
MR. WRIGHT:

We have to move on with the

vote.

14

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:

One last question,

15

if I may, to Mr. Kwak.

16

a matter of fact the other day.

17

even to Mr. Corey Gaskill.

18

like to speak to Mr. Kwak on another issue and I

19

would appreciate if it's possible.

20

that I have which was given to me and I couldn't get

21

through.

22

But because he's right there, I'd like to talk to

23

him.

24
25

I tried to call his office as

I'd like to have -- I'd

I know it's your meeting.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
you.

I left a message

The phone number

I know that.

Well, look.

I'll tell

Almeda, I'll try to get the number for Mr. Kwak
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1

and then I'll bring it around to you.

2
3

MS. ALMEDA JOHNSON:
Thank you so very much.

4
5

I appreciate that.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

You're welcome.

else have anything to say?

6

MS. ALMEDA:

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Bye-bye.
Anyone else have

8

anything?

9

to need a motion on a vote here.

10

Anyone

So, now, we're going to have -- I'm going
Darryl, do we have

any special statement for a vote on this?

11

MR. RHONE:

Well, the only thing I would

12

add is that for everyone to, you know, consider the

13

relevancy of what you heard and, again, the criteria

14

in terms of making your vote.

15

I believe Ms. Mackay's question was very

16

good in terms of drawing out an answer in terms of

17

how you come to that decision.

18

you have a lot for your first meeting but we thank

19

you for being here.

20

need now is for someone to, you know, bring that

21

forward.

22

of five voting members.

23
24
25

Ms. Jackson, I know

And Mr. Chairman, I think all we

And, remember, it takes an affirmative vote

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Would someone like to

make a motion on a vote?
MS. GUIDA:

So moved to vote on the use
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1

variance.

2
3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:
talking.

4

MS. GUIDA:

5

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

MR. RHONE:

7

Melissa.
Melissa.

That'll be a motion to grant

the proposed use variances from the applicant.

8
9

I don't know who is

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Melissa, you're voting

to grant that?

10

MS. GUIDA:

The motion to grant, yes.

11

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

12

MR. RHONE:

Do I have a second?

Mr. Rivera is proposing a

13

second.

14

the motion and the second to generally vote along the

15

lines of approving given that you're bringing forth

16

that and the other one is supporting it.

17

generally how that goes.

18
19

Just keep in mind that's normal practice for

Just letting you know.

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Mr. Rivera, did you do a

second?

20

MR. RHONE:

21

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

22

Chairman.

23
24
25

That's

Yes.
It's in the Chat, Mr.

It's in the Chat.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

In the Chat?

Who said

that?
MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

Yes, it's Dena.
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2

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

MS. MOORE-JOHNSON:

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

6

MR. RHONE:

Okay.

Madam Secretary, that will be

roll call.

8
9

I guess we can't hear

him so he placed his second motion in the Chat.

5

7

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Let's take a roll-call

vote.

10

MS. SECAUR:

11

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

12

MS. SECAUR:

13

VICE-CHAIRMAN DARDINE:

14

MS. SECAUR:

15

MS. GUIDA:

16

MS. SECAUR:

17

I don't

know what that means.

3
4

There you are.

favor," says his Chat.

18

Chairman James.
No.

Vice-Chairman Dardine.
Yes.

Melissa Guida.
Yes.
Richard Rivera.

"I vote in

Maryanne Brown-Mackay.

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I have one question.

19

What is it we're voting on, the motion or the

20

actual --

21

MR. RHONE:

22

approving it.

23

going forward with it.

The motion is the action of

So if you say yes, that means you're
No, that you're not.

24

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

25

MS. SECAUR:

No.

Gregory Wright.

110

1

MR. WRIGHT:

No.

2

MS. SECAUR:

Alternate Jennette Jackson.

3

MS. JACKSON:

4

MS. SECAUR:

5

No.
So I have four no's; three

yays.

6

MR. RHONE:

The motion does not carry.

7

MR. WILEY:

Understood.

8
9

much for your time.
CHAIRMAN JAMES:

10

MR. WILEY:

11

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

12

MR. WILEY:

13

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

14

Thank you, John.

Okay.
Thank you, John.

Okay.

Good night.

Thank you, David and

thank you, John Kenny.

15

MR. KWAK:

16

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Thank you.
Okay.

17

all the business we have today.

18

all pretty beat.

19
20

Thank you very

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

I think that's

And I think we're

I have one quick

question, Ken.

21

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Go ahead.

22

MS. BROWN-MACKAY:

To pose to the Board,

23

since, and I don't know how many people, have

24

received their vaccine's for the COVID vaccines, so

25

at this point, I'd like to at least have the Board
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1

think about going forward instead of doing --

2

continuing these Zoom meetings; maybe potentially

3

being able to meet in person at the Borough Hall; go

4

back to, you know, meeting in the conference room if

5

that is possible with -- I don't if the Borough Hall

6

is open but with -- if everyone has had their vaccine

7

and we all wear a mask, if some people would be

8

comfortable with that.

9
10

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

I'm vaccinated.

Richard

Dardine, are you vaccinated?

11

VICE-CHAIRMAN DARDINE:

12

MR. RHONE:

Yes.

Mr. Chairman, Ms. Mackay,

13

that decision in terms of the use of the Borough Hall

14

lies with the mayor and his solicitor, Mr. Tarver.

15

So that conversation would have to be held by the --

16

MS. MACKAY:

Okay.

17

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

Okay.

18

around to see who is vaccinate.

19

Richard Dardine is vaccinated.

20
21

MR. RHONE:

I'm vaccinated.
Ron?

Wait, wait.

I would advise

that we have that conversation off-line.

22

MS. MACKAY:

23

MR. RHONE:

24

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

25

I want to just go

Okay.
Can we get a motion to close?
Motion to close.

have a motion to close the meeting?

Do I

112

1

MS. MACKAY:

2

MR. DARDINE:

3

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

4

it.

I make a motion to close.
Second.

Maryanne made the motion.

5

THE BOARD:

6

CHAIRMAN JAMES:

7

Richard Dardine seconded
All in favor?

Yays.
Any opposed?

So the

meeting is closed.

8

- - -

9

(***Meeting concluded at 10:10 p.m.***)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1

CERTIFICATION

2
3
4
5

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am a Certified Court
Reporter and Notary Public.

6
7

I FURTHER CERTIFY that the witness was sworn
to testify to the truth.

8
9

I FURTHER CERTIFY that the foregoing is, to
the best of my ability, a true and accurate

10

transcript of the testimony taken stenographically by

11

me at the time, place, and date hereinbefore set

12

forth.

13

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither a relative,

14

employee, attorney or counsel to any of the

15

parties to the action, nor a relative or employee of

16

such attorney or counsel and that I am not

17

financially interested in the action.

18
19
20

_______________________
Regine A. Ervin, CCR
Certified Court Reporter
License #30XI000222200

21
22

(The foregoing certification of this transcript

23

does not apply to any reproduction of the same by any

24

means, unless under the direction, control and/or

25

supervision of the certifying reporter.)
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